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producers using American workers?
The political primary season has forced
the political and media establishment
to take seriously American’s deep-felt
concern about economic insecurity and
loss of jobs to foreign competition. It’s
about time they caught on. All it takes
is a trip through North Carolina to see
the scores of textile mills closed due to
foreign competition to understand why
Americans have a legitimate fear of
losing their job or see their hard
earned wages fall.

Politicians had better ponder the
economic calamity that will surely
occur in America if and when foreign
producers shut off our supply, or dou-
ble the already enormous cost of im-
ported oil flowing into the United
States.
f

TRIBUTE TO TRUDY VINCENT

Mr. BRADLEY. Mr. President, I rise
to offer my warmest thanks, respect,
and heartfelt congratulations to my
legislative director, Trudy Vincent,
who will leave my staff at the end of
this week. For 3 years, in her second
tour of duty in my office, Trudy has
been the anchor of my legislative work,
and deserves much of the credit for the
legislative accomplishments of my of-
fice since 1993.

Although Trudy will be leaving my
staff, she will not be leaving the Sen-
ate, and my office’s loss is the gain of
my colleague Senator BINGAMAN of
New Mexico, who will undoubtedly
grow to depend upon her much as I
have.

Like many of the most gifted and
successful of the staff members who
serve this institution, Trudy first came
here as a fellow through an academic
program, having first pursued and suc-
ceeded in another demanding field. In
her case, Trudy first attained a doctor-
ate in psychology, then joined my of-
fice in 1987 as a legislative fellow,
working on innovative education and
health initiatives.

When her first tour of duty in my of-
fice ended after a year, Trudy joined
the staff of her home State Senator,
Senator MIKULSKI, rose to legislative
director, and returned to my staff as
legislative director in 1993. I have
found her good sense, her wide knowl-
edge, her broad network of friends and
professional contacts, and her sense of
humor to be of invaluable help in all
that I do for the people of New Jersey
and the Nation.

The most important attribute a Sen-
ator or legislative staffer can possess, I
have found, is persistence and dedica-
tion. You have to be entrepreneurial,
always looking for opportunities to
move a good idea forward and never
giving up when things look bleak.
Trudy exemplifies these qualities. Her
persistence and dedication has helped
us move forward most of my urban ini-
tiatives of 1993, the funding for the
high school student exchange with the
republics of the former Soviet Union,
student loan reform, several nomina-

tions, and very soon, I hope it will lead
to final passage of my bill to prohibit
new mothers from being discharged
from the hospital before they or their
babies are ready.

In addition to these qualities, there
is an intangible between a Senator and
a staff member. It is related to loyalty
and knowledge, but it also is some-
thing more. It is the phenomenon of
being confident that the staff member
knows how to further the Senator’s
goals in a way that is consistent with
the Senator’s values and style. I’ve al-
ways felt that way about Trudy. I
could truly leave it to her and know
that it would be done as I would want
it done. I guess I’m saying that at the
core of a Senator-staff relation is trust.
That’s clearly the way it’s been be-
tween us, for which I am lucky and
very grateful.

I want finally to thank Trudy again,
express my appreciation for all her
long hours and hard work, and wish her
all the best fortune as she continues to
contribute to the workings of this
democratic institution after I leave.

The PRESIDING OFFICER (Mr.
DEWINE). The Senator from Utah.

Mr. BENNETT. Mr. President, I sug-
gest the absence of a quorum.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The
clerk will call the roll.

The bill clerk proceeded to call the
roll.

Mr. BENNETT. Mr. President, I ask
unanimous consent that the order for
the quorum call be rescinded.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Without
objection, it is so ordered.
f

ADJOURNMENT

Mr. BENNETT. Mr. President, I ask
unanimous consent that the Senate
now stand in adjournment for 1
minute, and that when the Senate re-
convenes its morning hour be deemed
to have expired.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Without
objection, it is so ordered.

Thereupon, the Senate adjourned
until 11:12 a.m.; whereupon, the Senate
at 11:13 a.m. reassembled when called
to order by the Presiding Officer [Mr.
DEWINE].

Mr. BENNETT addressed the Chair.
The PRESIDING OFFICER. The Sen-

ator from Utah.
f

WHITEWATER DEVELOPMENT
CORP. AND RELATED MATTERS—
MOTION TO PROCEED

Mr. BENNETT. Mr. President, I ask
unanimous consent that the Senate
now proceed to the consideration of
calendar No. 341, Senate Resolution 227
regarding the Special Committee on
Whitewater.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Is there
objection?

Mr. SARBANES. I object.
The PRESIDING OFFICER. Objec-

tion is heard.
Mr. BENNETT. Mr. President, I now

move to proceed to calendar 341, Sen-
ate Resolution 227.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The
question is on the motion.

Is there further debate?
Mr. MACK addressed the Chair.
The PRESIDING OFFICER. The Sen-

ator from Florida.
Mr. MACK. Mr. President, we are

here today primarily because the White
House has not been dealing with the
special committee in good faith. I
know that there are those who would
accuse this committee of conducting a
political witch hunt in an election
year. But I submit that there are le-
gitimate and powerful reasons to be in-
vestigating Whitewater Development
Corp. and all of the related matters.

At the outset, it should be made
clear that the main reason this com-
mittee needs additional time is the ab-
ject failure of this administration to
cooperate. Contrary to all of their pub-
lic statements, I believe the White
House has been actively engaged in a
coverup. They have repeatedly refused
to turn over relevant evidence and
have often failed to remember key
facts under oath.

To give just one example, Bruce
Lindsey was asked on numerous occa-
sions whether he had produced all rel-
evant documents to the committee,
and he insisted under oath that he had.
In particular, the committee asked
about any notes he might have taken
during the November 5, 1994, meeting of
the Whitewater defense team. That is
the same meeting where William Ken-
nedy took notes, and we almost had to
go to court to obtain them. Last Fri-
day—that is the very date the special
committee’s funding was set to ex-
pire—he turned over his clearly
marked notes of the November 5
Whitewater defense team meeting.

The American people deserve better
than that. Again, this is only one ex-
ample—where Bruce Lindsey was asked
over and over again whether he had
taken notes during that November 5
meeting, and we were told over and
over again that he had not. On the day
this committee’s funding expired, they
turned over these notes of the meeting.

In my opinion, the White House has
done everything in its power to hide
the truth. That is why we are here ask-
ing for additional funds to continue the
committee’s work.

Mr. President, I suspect that over the
next several hours we obviously will
hear from both sides of the aisle on
this. But on our side of the aisle, I ex-
pect that most of our Members who
participated in these hearings will
probably do as I have done; that is, to
focus my attention on some specific
areas where I focused my attention
during the committee hearings. So my
comments now will be somewhat fo-
cused on the behavior of the White
House officials immediately after Vin-
cent Foster’s death.

The death of White House Deputy
Counsel Vincent W. Foster, Jr., on July
20, 1993, marked the first time since
Secretary of Defense James Forrestal
died in 1949 that such a high-ranking
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U.S. official took his own life. Mr. Fos-
ter was a close friend of both the Presi-
dent and Mrs. Clinton, and provided
legal counsel to them on a number of
sensitive personal matters, including
Whitewater. Given Mr. Foster’s sen-
sitive position within the administra-
tion and his close personal friendship
with the Clinton’s, there were legiti-
mate questions to be asked about the
way he died.

The reason I raise this is because I
have a feeling that those who may have
just casually been observing or watch-
ing these hearings may have asked the
question, What is all the concern about
how the White House handled the re-
view of documents in Vince Foster’s of-
fice? I have already indicated that he
was a personal friend of the Clintons,
but there are questions that would be
raised about any suicide of an individ-
ual in this kind of position.

Questions, for example, could be: Was
there blackmail involved? Was he a
victim of a crime that had something
to do with his position? Could he have
been the subject of extortion? Was our
national security compromised in any
way? Officials would certainly be con-
cerned with finding out the answers to
these questions as soon as possible.

In the days following his death,
White House officials—in particular,
members of the White House counsel’s
office—searched the contents of Mr.
Foster’s office and at the same time
prevented law enforcement officials
from conducting a similar search. In
doing this and later covering it up,
they have come to look like the
guiltiest bunch of people I have ever
seen.

Section (1)(b)(1) of Senate Resolution
120 authorizes the committee to in-
quire ‘‘whether improper conduct oc-
curred regarding the way in which
White House officials handled docu-
ments in the office of White House Dep-
uty Counsel Vincent Foster following
his death.’’

Pursuant to this directive, the com-
mittee conducted 69 depositions and
held 17 days of public hearings to inves-
tigate the actions of White House offi-
cials in the week following Mr. Foster’s
death. The committee’s investigation
revealed, among other things, the fol-
lowing facts.

Fact: Foster’s office was never sealed
the night of his death despite four sep-
arate official requests.

Fact: High-ranking White House offi-
cials searched it without supervision.

Fact: Maggie Williams was seen by
an unbiased witness carrying a stack of
documents out of Foster’s office.

Fact: Nussbaum made an agreement
for Justice Department officials to
conduct a search of Foster’s office.

Fact: Nussbaum told Stephen
Neuwirth that the First Lady and
Susan Thomases was concerned with
the Justice officials having unfettered
access to Foster’s office.

Fact: A flurry of phone calls occurred
at critical times—17 separate contacts
in a 48-hour period among Hillary Clin-

ton, Maggie Williams, Susan
Thomases, and Nussbaum.

Fact: After those calls, Nussbaum
reneged on the deal with the Depart-
ment of Justice investigators. He in-
sisted on searching the office himself.

Fact: Once the investigators left the
scene, a real search occurred with
Maggie Williams’ help, and afterwards
she took documents to the residence.

Mr. President, I am going to go back
through those various facts that I have
raised, and again I am focusing on a
very, very small portion and limited
area of this whole debate. The area
that I will be focusing on again is the
night of Foster’s death and the few
days following that death.

Seven different persons recalled four
separate requests to White House offi-
cials to seal Vincent Foster’s office on
the evening of his death. This was not
done until the next morning. Hillary
Rodham Clinton called Maggie Wil-
liams, her chief of staff, at 10:13 p.m.
immediately upon hearing of Mr. Fos-
ter’s death on July 20, 1993. Right after
talking with Mrs. Clinton, Ms. Wil-
liams proceeded to the White House to
Mr. Foster’s office. White House Coun-
sel Bernie Nussbaum and Deputy Direc-
tor of the White House Office of Admin-
istration, Patsy Thomasson, met her
there and conducted a late-night
search of Mr. Foster’s office without
law enforcement supervision.

Mrs. Clinton then called Susan
Thomases, a close personal friend, in
New York at 11:19 p.m. Secret Service
officer Henry O’Neill testified that on
the night of Mr. Foster’s death, he saw
Ms. Williams remove file folders 3 to 5
inches thick from the White House
counsel’s suite and place them in her
office.

Now, why would this Secret Service
individual lie about that? This could
constitute obstruction of justice, par-
ticularly if the billing records were in
those files. If this is true, there could
be two possible separate counts, the
first against Maggie Williams for
knowingly taking relevant documents
out of Foster’s office with the intent to
hide them from investigators, and the
second for turning them over to some-
one else, possibly the Clintons, who
then intentionally withheld them from
us in violation of numerous document
requests and subpoenas.

This is one of the central questions
which the committee must resolve.

After searching Mr. Foster’s office on
the night of his death, Ms. Williams
called Mrs. Clinton in Little Rock at
12:56 a.m. on July 21, 1993, and talked
with her for 11 minutes. Again, this is
12:56 a.m., middle of the night. Once
that call was concluded, only 3 minutes
later, at 1:10 a.m., after her conversa-
tion with Mrs. Clinton, Ms. Williams
called Ms. Thomases in New York and
they talked for 20 minutes.

I wish to note here that when we first
spoke to Ms. Williams, she categori-
cally denied talking to Ms. Thomases
that night. Imagine, that was a 20-
minute conversation that took place at

1:10 in the morning and Ms. Williams
categorically denied talking to Ms.
Thomases. When the committee asked
her for her phone records to prove her
claim, she and her lawyer stated they
were not available from the phone
company. We asked the phone company
for the records and, voila, 1 week later,
we had them.

Susan Thomases, a New York lawyer,
is a close personal friend of President
and Mrs. Clinton. She has known the
President for 25 years and Mrs. Clinton
for almost 20 years. She was an adviser
to the Clinton 1992 Presidential cam-
paign and remained in the close circle
of confidants to the Clintons after the
election. One article referred to Ms.
Thomases as the ‘‘blunt force instru-
ment’’ of enforcement for the First
Lady. She was the one who got things
done in a crunch. As my colleague,
Senator BENNETT, described her during
the hearings, she was the ‘‘go-to’’ guy
on the Clinton team. If the First Lady
wanted to make sure that her people
got to Foster’s files before outside law
enforcement, Susan Thomases was just
the person to get the job done.

Department of Justice officials testi-
fied that they agreed with Mr. Nuss-
baum on July 21, 1993, that they would
jointly review documents in Mr. Fos-
ter’s office. Let me just say that again.
There was an agreement between the
Justice Department and Bernie Nuss-
baum as to how the documents in Mr.
Foster’s office would be reviewed.

Then there is a flurry of phone calls
that occurs at what I would call criti-
cal times. We then begin a period of
time in which a multitude of calls took
place involving Thomases, Williams,
and the First Lady. I believe the pur-
pose of these calls might have been to
make sure that the agreement Bernie
Nussbaum had made with the Justice
Department concerning the search of
Foster’s office was not kept.

Call No. 1. At 6:44 a.m.—fairly early
in the morning. I am trying to think
about how many phone calls I have ac-
tually placed at 6:44 a.m. Anyway, 6:44
a.m. Arkansas time on July 22, Maggie
Williams called Mrs. Clinton—this is
the day following—called Mrs. Clinton
at her mother’s house in Little Rock,
and they talked for 7 minutes. Ms. Wil-
liams initially did not tell the special
committee about her early-morning
phone call to the Rodham residence.

After obtaining her residential tele-
phone records documenting the call,
the special committee voted unani-
mously to call Ms. Williams back for
further testimony. When presented
with these records, Ms. Williams testi-
fied, ‘‘If I was calling the residence, it
is likely that I was trying to reach
Mrs. Clinton. If it was 6:44 in Arkansas,
there’s a possibility that she was not
up. I don’t remember who I talked to,
but I don’t find it unusual that the
chief of staff to the First Lady might
want to call her early in the morning
for a number of reasons.’’

Maggie Williams said, ‘‘I don’t re-
call’’ or ‘‘I don’t remember’’ so many
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times I lost count. According to one
New York paper, as of last month, all
of the Whitewater witnesses combined
said this a total of 797 times during the
hearings alone.

Call No. 2. This is a call that takes
place now 6 minutes after the call that
Maggie Williams forgot or just did not
mention to the committee until we had
records of the call. But 6 minutes after
she apparently was willing to wake up
the First Lady 6:44 Arkansas time, 6
minutes later Mrs. Clinton called the
Mansion on O Street, a small hotel
where Susan Thomases stayed in Wash-
ington, DC. The call lasted 3 minutes.
Oddly enough, Ms. Thomases did not
remember this call again until after
the committee was provided with her
phone records.

Call No. 3. Upon ending her conversa-
tion with Mrs. Clinton, Susan
Thomases immediately paged Bernie
Nussbaum at the White House, leaving
her number at the Mansion on O
Street. When Mr. Nussbaum answered
the page, they talked about the upcom-
ing review of documents in Mr. Fos-
ter’s office. Ms. Thomases actually told
the committee that these two phone
calls had nothing to do with one an-
other. After obtaining records docu-
menting that she talked with Mrs.
Clinton for 3 minutes immediately
prior to paging Mr. Nussbaum, the spe-
cial committee voted unanimously to
call Ms. Thomases back for further tes-
timony.

She maintained, however, that she
called Nussbaum, because again, ‘‘I was
worried about my friend Bernie, and I
was just about to go into a very, very
busy day in my work, and I wanted to
make sure that I got to talk to Bernie
that day since I had not been lucky
enough to speak with him the day be-
fore.’’

I will come back to the busy day she
was having later. At this point I will
say that she was busy all right, but not
with her private law practice.

Mr. Nussbaum has a different recol-
lection of his conversations with Ms.
Thomases. On July 22 he testified that
Ms. Thomases initiated the discussion
about the procedures that he intended
to employ in reviewing documents in
Mr. Foster’s office.

‘‘The conversation on the 22d’’—this
is a quote now— ‘‘The conversation on
the 22d was that she asked me what
was going on with respect to the exam-
ination of Mr. Foster’s office.’’ ‘‘She
said * * * people were concerned or dis-
agreeing * * * whether a correct proce-
dure was being followed, * * * whether
it was proper to give people access to
the office at all.’’

According to Mr. Nussbaum, Ms.
Thomases did not specify who these
‘‘people’’ were to whom she was refer-
ring, nor did Mr. Nussbaum understand
who they were. Mr. Nussbaum testified
he resisted Ms. Thomases’ overture,
but he said, ‘‘Susan * * * I’m having
discussions with various people,’’
which, by the way, we determined
those various people were Hillary Clin-

ton, Bill Clinton and Maggie Williams.
Again quoting—‘‘Susan * * * I’m hav-
ing discussions with various people. As
far as the White House is concerned, I
will make a decision as to how this is
going to be conducted.’’

He did decide to renege on his deal
with the Department of Justice, but
only after more phone calls from
Maggie Williams and Susan Thomases.
We have independent corroboration
from Steve Neuwirth. Steve Neuwirth,
a member of the White House counsel
staff, testified under oath that Bernie
Nussbaum told him Susan Thomases
and the First Lady were concerned
about giving the officials from Justice
‘‘unfettered access’’ to Foster’s office.

While the Justice Department offi-
cials were kept waiting outside, Nuss-
baum continued his discussions, as
more phone calls ensued, presumably
about how to search the office.

Call No. 4. We are back again to this
series of phone calls I was describing a
little earlier. This is the fourth phone
call. This is 8:25 in the morning of July
22. Thomases called the Rodham resi-
dence and spoke for 4 minutes.

Call No. 5. At 9 a.m., Thomases called
Maggie Williams and left the message
‘‘call when you get in the office.’’

Call No. 6. 10:48 a.m., Thomases calls
Chief of Staff McLarty’s offices, spoke
with someone for 3 minutes.

A meeting involving numerous mem-
bers of the White House staff was going
on in McLarty’s office at this time to
decide how to handle the search of Fos-
ter’s office. In the meantime, the offi-
cials from the Justice Department,
Park Police, and other agencies were
waiting around for the search to begin.

Call No. 7. 11:04 a.m., Thomases
called Maggie Williams, spoke for 6
minutes.

Call No. 8. This is occurring 1 minute
after the conclusion of the previous
call—Thomases calls Chief of Staff
McLarty’s office, spoke with someone
for 3 minutes.

Call No. 9, just a couple minutes
later, Thomases calls Chief of Staff
McLarty’s office again; spoke with
someone for 1 minute.

Call No. 10. 11:37 a.m., Thomases
called Maggie Williams, spoke for 11
minutes. Three minutes after that call
was completed, Thomases called
Maggie Williams and spoke for 4 min-
utes. Do not forget, this is all taking
place during the time that Ms.
Thomases said she was going to be
very, very busy on conference calls re-
lated to her private legal practice.

When we asked Ms. Williams about
all these calls to her office from Susan
Thomases, she denied talking to her,
and told us it could have been anybody
else in her office, could have been an
intern, a volunteer, or another staffer.
Her refusal to take responsibility for
the calls resulted in 32 different staff-
ers having to be interviewed about who
might have spoken to Susan Thomases
that day, and all said they do not re-
member talking to her.

By doing this, Maggie Williams asked
the committee to believe that Susan

Thomases regularly calls unpaid in-
terns at the White House just to chat.
Her testimony to the committee was
frankly typical of her whole approach
to the process. In my opinion, both
Maggie Williams and Susan Thomases
are openly contemptuous of the com-
mittee’s work. Their attitude toward
this inquiry has never been one of co-
operation, but rather blatant hostility.

Their behavior, coupled with the doc-
umentary evidence we have acquired,
lead me to no other reasonable conclu-
sion than that Maggie Williams and
Susan Thomases were involved or in-
fluenced the decision to breach the
agreement with the Department of Jus-
tice. Their behavior, and what I believe
to be the reasons behind it, are frankly
an insult, not just to us, but to the
credibility and integrity of the Presi-
dency.

Call No. 12. At 12:47 p.m., Capricia, an
individual who is Hillary Clinton’s per-
sonal assistant, paged Maggie Williams
from the Rodham residence.

Call No. 13. 12:55 p.m., Maggie Wil-
liams called the Rodham residence and
spoke for 1 minute. The pressure on
Nussbaum must have been too great.
He broke his agreement with the Jus-
tice Department and conducted the
search essentially unsupervised. After
learning of Nussbaum’s reversal, David
Margolis, one of the seasoned DOJ offi-
cials sent over for the search, told
Nussbaum, that he was making a big
mistake.

Once he heard this news, Philip
Heymann, the Deputy Attorney Gen-
eral, later asked, ‘‘Bernie, are you hid-
ing something?″

Call No. 14. At 1:25 p.m., the White
House phone call to Rodham residence.
Conversation for 6 minutes. Was this to
tell Mrs. Clinton the deal with the Jus-
tice Department had been reneged
upon?

Then we move to the search which
takes place in Foster’s office from ap-
proximately 1 p.m. to 3 p.m. The De-
partment of Justice officials again are
kept at bay.

Call No. 15. 3:05 p.m., Bill Burton,
McLarty’s deputy, called Maggie Wil-
liams and left a message. He had been
asked by Nussbaum, after the review of
Foster’s office, to locate Maggie Wil-
liams. This signals the attempt by
Nussbaum, through his deputy, to get
the real search of the office underway,
but only with Ms. Williams’ help.

Call No. 16. 3:08 p.m., Thomases
called Maggie Williams. Spoke for 10
minutes.

Call No. 17. 3:25 p.m., Steve Neuwirth
called Ms. Williams and left a message.
They are still trying to find Ms. Wil-
liams.

Call No. 18. It occurred somewhere
between 4 and 4:30 p.m. Bernie Nuss-
baum personally called Maggie Wil-
liams to summon her to Foster’s office.
They searched the office for about half
an hour.

Call No. 19. Somewhere between 4:30
and 5 p.m. Maggie Williams phoned Hil-
lary Clinton.
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Call No. 20. 5:13 p.m., Thomases

called Maggie Williams. Spoke for 9
minutes, 30 seconds.

Then Maggie Williams takes the doc-
uments to the residence. Although the
public was initially told by the White
House spokesperson that all the Clin-
tons personal documents were imme-
diately turned over to their lawyers
after Foster’s death, once again, we
later learned this was simply untrue.

Tom Castleton, a White House em-
ployee, spoke against his own interest
and told us Maggie Williams asked him
to take boxes of documents from Fos-
ter’s office to the residence on July 22,
1993, so the First Lady and the Presi-
dent could review them.

I want to go back to this point again.
This is Maggie Williams who again
says that this did not occur. We have
got testimony under oath from Tom
Castleton that when he and Maggie
Williams were taking these documents
to the third floor of the White House,
that Maggie Williams told Tom
Castleton that the reason they were
doing this is so that the First Lady and
the President could review them.

What I see is a day that begins and
ends with Maggie Williams, Susan
Thomases and Hillary Clinton convers-
ing. I think Maggie Williams started
the day at 6:44 talking with the First
Lady about the need to keep law en-
forcement out of Foster’s office and to
get certain documents into a safe
place.

She ended the day with a conversa-
tion with Thomases and a conversation
with Hillary Clinton to let them
know—mission accomplished. Bernie
Nussbaum was able to control the doc-
ument review. Nothing was divulged to
the Department of Justice investiga-
tors. The sensitive documents of the
First Lady were whisked away to the
private quarters where months later
Carolyn Huber discovered critical bill-
ing records which had Foster’s hand-
writing all over them.

Hubbell even told us he had last seen
them in Foster’s possession. I believe
those records may have been among
the files Maggie Williams took out of
Foster’s office.

The first time we talked to Ms. Wil-
liams and Ms. Thomases, we only had a
record of 12 of these phone calls. They
denied talking to each other, except
maybe once or twice, during this pe-
riod. We received the phone records in
three separate installments and, in the
end, we see their testimony was noth-
ing but deception.

There were 17 separate contacts in a
48-hour period among Hillary Clinton,
Maggie Williams, Susan Thomases and
Bernie Nussbaum, which I believe were
related to how to handle the docu-
ments in Foster’s office. Thomases was
on the phone to the White House for 28
out of 58 minutes when Nussbaum was
trying to decide how to handle the
search of Foster’s office.

Again, this was on the day that, in
her own words, again I quote, ‘‘I was
just about to go into a very, very busy

day in my own work.’’ It now appears
that her work was, in fact, the First
Lady’s work.

But that is not all. There is more de-
ception about the suicide note and the
documents removed from Foster’s of-
fice. I want to reiterate, I have picked
out one small segment of the investiga-
tion of the testimony that we reviewed,
and it certainly ought to become obvi-
ous to people, as they listen to this,
the lack of cooperation that we re-
ceived from the witnesses, the lack of
cooperation that we received from the
White House. As I said earlier, I believe
that the White House was actively in-
volved in trying to cover up.

I am moving now to July 27, 1993. It
is an important day. This is the day
that the suicide note was turned over.
Vince Foster’s suicide note had been
found the previous day. It was only
turned over to the Park Police after a
meeting with Janet Reno where she in-
structed the White House to do so. At-
torney General Reno was very strong
and decisive in her direction to the
White House. I am paraphrasing, but
basically the impression she left was,
‘‘Why did you waste my time? Why did
I have to come to the White House to
tell you to turn these documents over?″

I raise the question, Why were the
documents not turned over the same
day they were found? If you think
about it for a moment, what possible
reason could the White House have for
keeping that note overnight, 30 hours?
Why?

In retrospect, it is stunning that the
White House did not turn it over to the
Park Police right away. Obviously, as
we can see by their handling of the
note, they had no real intention of co-
operating. Prior to the note being
turned over to the Justice Department
or Park Police, Hillary Clinton and a
horde of other White House officials
saw it. From what it sounded like,
there were a large number of people—
again, what I am referring to is from
the testimony. The note was found,
taken to Nussbaum’s office, and people
were coming in and reviewing this
note. The people who, in fact, had seen
the note were asked to testify about
that note and who else was in the
room, who else saw the note.

Oddly enough, everyone who was
later interviewed by the FBI about the
circumstances of finding the note for-
got about the First Lady having seen
it. Only during our second round of
hearings did we learn about this impor-
tant fact.

As for the documents that Tom
Castleton and Maggie Williams took up
to the residence on the 22d, they were
turned over to Bob Barnett, the Clin-
ton’s personal attorney, on this day, on
the 27th. Susan Thomases has testified
she did not recall seeing Mrs. Clinton
on July 27 and that she was not in-
volved in Ms. Williams’ transfer of
Whitewater files from the White House
residence to Clinton’s personal lawyer,
Mr. Bob Barnett, this despite records
showing that Susan Thomases entered

the residence at the same time as Mr.
Barnett.

Thomases spent 6 hours there, yet
she does not remember anything about
being in the White House that day. I
mean, they are really asking us to
stretch our willingness to understand
how this could happen.

I want to go over that point again be-
cause I find this really—6 hours she
was in the White House. It would be
one thing if somehow or another she
just happened to either bump into
Maggie Williams or bump into Bob
Barnett and forgot it, but to, in es-
sence, have forgotten anything about
the 6 hours at the White House, I just
find that very, very, very hard to be-
lieve.

As recently as January 9, 1996, we re-
ceived another phone record of a mes-
sage from Mrs. Clinton to Susan
Thomases from July 27, 1993 at 1:30
p.m., asking Thomases to please call
Hillary. Ms. Thomases was in Washing-
ton, DC on that day when she would
not normally have been in town, and
she had received a message from Mrs.
Clinton’s scheduler the day before.
This is also the first time Ms.
Thomases saw the First Lady after
Vince Foster committed suicide.

So that is two personal requests by
the First Lady to speak to her, but
Thomases has no memory of the occa-
sion. Ironically enough, she was able to
tell the committee in some detail the
specific reasons why she happened to
be in Washington on Tuesday instead
of on Wednesday but has absolutely no
memory of a White House visit when
there. This type of memory loss is,
first, unbelievable and, second, I be-
lieve a purposeful attempt to avoid giv-
ing the committee information that it
is entitled to.

What I have gone over is just, again,
one small portion of the body of evi-
dence this committee has uncovered.

Here are some other items which
form my view of the situation and ex-
plain why I have arrived at the conclu-
sion that this White House has engaged
in an attempt to completely stonewall
the committee and the American pub-
lic.

Unethical Treasury/White House con-
tacts led to the resignation of Altman
and Hanson and Steiner, saying he lied
to his diary. You may recall that from
earlier hearings we had. These contacts
were a systematic effort to gain con-
fidential information from Government
sources and ultimately influence the
criminal and civil investigations of
Madison.

The President’s refusal to turn over
vital notes under the guise of attorney-
client privilege—this kind of coordina-
tion among White House staff and per-
sonal lawyers resulted in a
multimember Clinton defense team at
taxpayers’ expense.

Now we understand why they did not
want to turn over those notes, because
they contain phrases such as ‘‘vacuum
Rose law files.’’
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The coverup has now reached the

third floor of the White House resi-
dence. It is difficult to construct a sce-
nario where whoever left billing
records on that table is not guilty of a
felony. It is the most secure room in
the world. Are we supposed to believe,
as my colleague from North Carolina
indicated during the hearing, that the
butler did it?

Hillary Clinton has publicly floated
the possibility that construction work-
ers may have placed those billing
records in the book room. After com-
mittee investigation, we now know
that workers are under constant Secret
Service supervision and they would be
fired if they moved anything around.

The White House has seriously de-
layed document production from key
White House players in the Whitewater
legal defense team: Gearan, Ickes and
Waldman—and, as I said earlier, just
last week, Lindsey.

Even when documents were turned
over, there were redactions which were
just plain wrong. The notes Mr. Gearan
produced to us of a series of meetings
of the Whitewater legal defense team
were so heavily redacted that the com-
mittee insisted on a review of the com-
plete notes. As it turns out, the White
House chose to redact highly relevant
statements.

For example, one redacted portion—
and I guess maybe I ought to stop for a
minute, because some people may not
understand what ‘‘redaction’’ means. It
would be, for example, if I were to take
this page and make the determination
that there were some things on here
that were not relevant; I would just
white them out and white out every-
thing on the page I thought was irrele-
vant, leaving only, let us say, a note on
here that says, ‘‘Quality, not quantity
of evidence’’ that is important.

So, for example, one of the redactions
said that ‘‘the First Lady was ada-
mantly opposed to the appointment of
a special counsel.’’ What I am saying to
you is, when we first got the document,
a lot of information that we believed
was relevant was whited out, redacted.
We could not see it. It was only after
we demanded to see it, after they said
to us, ‘‘Do not worry, there is nothing
else of any relevance on this document
to what you are investigating.’’ This
one redacted portion said, ‘‘The First
Lady was adamantly opposed to the ap-
pointment of a special counsel.’’

I think that is relevant and it is an-
other example of the White House’s ef-
forts to keep us from moving forward.
I know that the White House, as well
as Members on the other side of the
aisle, keep hammering on the fact that
over 40,000 pages of documents have
been produced. But it is not the quan-
tity of documents that matter. They
could produce a million pages but de-
liberately withhold one key page. By
telling us to be satisfied with what
they have already given us, it is like
telling us we can have everything but
the 18-minute gap in the 4,000 plus
hours of Watergate tapes. Plain and

simple, in my opinion, this amounts to
contempt of the Senate and obstruc-
tion of justice.

We in the Senate have a serious re-
sponsibility to investigate abuses of
power in the executive branch. It is one
of our constitutional obligations and is
a responsibility which the people of
Florida expect me to carry out.

The obligation of the legislative
branch to hold the executive branch ac-
countable goes back to the beginning
of our American heritage. The Found-
ing Fathers had this very role in mind
when they debated ratification of the
Constitution. In Federalist Paper No.
51, James Madison explained the need
for checks and balances among the
branches of Government.

If angels were to govern men, neither ex-
ternal nor internal controls on government
would be necessary. In framing a government
which is to be administered by men over
men, the great difficulty lies in this: You
must first enable the government to control
the governed; and in the next place oblige it
to control itself.

The special committee’s work is an
attempt to ensure that we are control-
ling government in the way our Found-
ing Fathers envisioned. We owe it to
the American people. This is their Gov-
ernment, and we are accountable to
them.

Now, the failure of Madison Guar-
anty cost the taxpayers $60 million. I
have attended hearings day after day
and heard some amazing incidences of
wrongdoing, only to turn around and
hear administration apologists pro-
claim, ‘‘So what.’’ This is my reaction
to the ‘‘so what’’ response. In other
words, what they are saying is, ‘‘You
have not proved anybody guilty of any-
thing. There is no smoking gun. So
what.’’ It is like saying that if some-
body takes a gun and shoots at some-
body and misses, no harm was done. I
think, in fact, there is harm that has
been done; and it has, in fact, been un-
covered.

To those who insist that nothing
wrong was done, I suggest you look to
the results obtained so far from the
independent counsel’s work: Nine
guilty pleas and indictments against
seven others. That tells me that the is-
sues we are pursuing are important.

In fact, in the most recent round of
indictments, the President’s 1990 gu-
bernatorial campaign is specifically
mentioned as the direct beneficiary of
criminal behavior.

It is also interesting to note that the
work of this committee has helped, not
hindered or duplicated, the work of the
independent counsel. The Albany
Times Union observed that without the
public demand in our hearings for the
First Lady’s billing records, the special
prosecutor might still be waiting for
them.

The public has a right to know the
truth about this administration. On
February 25, the Washington Post ran
an editorial favoring an extension of
the special committee. The main rea-
son stated for needing additional time

was the failure of the White House to
cooperate. This is what the Washington
Post said: ‘‘Clinton officials have done
their share to extend the committee’s
life.’’

A January 25 editorial in the New
York Times said, ‘‘Given the White
House’s failure to address many unan-
swered questions, there is . . . a strong
public interest in keeping the commit-
tee alive.’’

One Florida newspaper, the St. Pe-
tersburg Times said, ‘‘Forget election
year politics. The American people de-
serve to know whether the Clinton ad-
ministration is guilty of misusing its
power and orchestrating a coverup. For
that reason—and that reason alone—
the Senate Whitewater hearings should
go on.’’

Further, they cited the most impor-
tant and most democratic reason to
continue these hearings was, ‘‘Ordinary
citizens need to learn what all this
Whitewater talk is about. Americans
deserve a President they can trust,
someone who embraces questions about
integrity instead of running from
them. If the answers make Clinton’s
campaigning more difficult, so be it.’’

Wrongdoing should not go
unpunished just because it was discov-
ered during an election year. ‘‘The
search for answers cannot stop now.’’

I agree wholeheartedly with the St.
Petersburg Times. This committee’s
work must continue in order to pre-
serve the future integrity of the office
of the President. The Presidency of the
United States is an office which should
be looked to as a beacon of trust. Our
President should be honest and forth-
right, and so should his staff. Our duty
is to ensure that the President upholds
this basic standard, abides by the laws
of the land, and avoids any abuse of his
sacred office.

Apologists for the administration’s
behavior have complained this inves-
tigation is costing taxpayers too much
money. I agree with my colleague,
again, from North Carolina, who said,
‘‘You cannot put a price tag on the in-
tegrity of the Presidency.’’

For those of my colleagues who may
still be deciding how to vote on this
matter, I suggest they ask themselves
a few basic questions. Have all the
White House staffers been forthcoming,
candid, helpful, and informative in
their testimony and conduct? Did the
career employees of key agencies who
contradicted White House staff lie
when they told us of White House in-
terference? Has the President fulfilled
his pledge to cooperate fully with the
committee? If you answer one or more
of these questions with a no, do as I
will, and support the resolution so that
we might finally learn the truth.

Thank you, Mr. President. I yield the
floor.

Mr. SARBANES addressed the Chair.
The PRESIDING OFFICER (Mr.

ASHCROFT). The Senator from Mary-
land is recognized.

Mr. SARBANES. Mr. President, the
issue before us is a resolution that has
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been reported from the Rules Commit-
tee, introduced by Senator D’AMATO,
the chairman of the Special
Whitewater Committee, which would
indefinitely extend the special commit-
tee and provide another $600,000 over
and above the almost million dollars
that was provided last year for it to
continue its work.

The distinguished minority leader,
Senator DASCHLE, has proposed that
the committee’s work continue until
the 3rd of April with an additional
$185,000. The question is really whether
the life of this committee ought to be
given an indefinite extension through-
out the 1996 Presidential election year.

I am going to retrace the history of
our inquiry with respect to this par-
ticular issue, because I am very frank
to say that I think the indefinite ex-
tension of the work of this committee
will only result in politicizing the com-
mittee. It will be increasingly per-
ceived by the public as an investigation
being conducted for political purposes.

Now, that was recognized last year
when the resolution establishing the
committee was first passed. Last
May—on May 17—the Senate adopted
Senate Resolution 120, which provided
for the establishment of the Special
Committee To Investigate the
Whitewater Development Corporation
and Related Matters. That resolution,
which provided $950,000—almost $1 mil-
lion to carry out that investigation—
provided that the funding would expire
on February 29, 1996.

The reason it provided that was that
from the beginning the intent was to
carry out this inquiry in a fair, thor-
ough, and impartial manner, and com-
plete it before the country enters into
the Presidential campaign. Therefore,
Resolution 120, by authorizing funding
only through February 29, accom-
plished this objective. In fact, the reso-
lution states that the purposes of the
committee are ‘‘to expedite the thor-
ough conduct of this investigation,
study and hearings’’ and ‘‘to engender
a high degree of confidence on the part
of the public regarding the conduct of
such investigation, study and hear-
ings.’’

In fact, Chairman D’AMATO, before
the Rules Committee, stated when
funding for the inquiry was being
sought, ‘‘We wanted to keep it out of
that political arena, and that is why
we decided to come forward with the
one-year request.’’

So it is very important to understand
that at the time the resolution was
adopted there was a concern about this
inquiry becoming a partisan political
endeavor. It was very clear that to
avoid that it was decided not to extend
the inquiry well into the Presidential
election year. In fact, the resolution
provided that the committee should re-
port to the Senate in mid-January,
evaluating its progress and the status
of the investigation. When that report
was made, regrettably the majority
took the position they needed an un-
limited extension of the inquiry—un-

limited. In other words, it could go
throughout 1996.

The minority took the position—and
this was back in mid-January—that
the committee should complete its in-
vestigation by the date contained in
the resolution; namely, the 29th of Feb-
ruary. We argued in that report, ‘‘It is
well within the ability of the commit-
tee to complete its investigation by the
February 29th date provided for in the
resolution. The committee should un-
dertake a schedule for the next 6 weeks
that will enable it to meet that objec-
tive.’’

In fact, the Senate leadership had an-
nounced that the Senate would not be
in regular voting sessions from the pe-
riod of mid-January until near the end
of February, and without any compet-
ing legislative business, it was our view
that the committee could devote full
attention of this investigation, hold an
intense series of hearings and complete
its inquiry on schedule—on schedule—
and within budget as provided for in
Senate Resolution 120 which this body
adopted last May on a vote of 96–3.

It was possible for the committee to
have met 4 or 5 days a week, a pace the
committee has on previous instances
followed. This very same committee
has followed that pace on other occa-
sions. That would have given the com-
mittee the opportunity to do the Ar-
kansas phase of the inquiry, part of
which remained to be completed, the
committee having largely completed
the work on the Foster papers phase
and the Washington phase.

Now, between July and August of last
year, between July 18 and August 10, at
a time when the Senate was in session
and Members were handling extensive
legislative business, this special com-
mittee held 13 days of public hearings
and examined 34 witnesses. That is a
period of 3 weeks last summer, this
committee, working hard, held 13 days
of public hearings and examined 34 wit-
nesses. The Iran-Contra committee,
which I will turn to in a bit to make
some other contrasts, held 21 days of
hearings back in 1987 between July 7
and August 6 in order to complete its
work.

Now, there is an important reason
not to carry this matter well into a
Presidential election year. By author-
izing the funding only through Feb-
ruary 29, Senate Resolution 120 stated
that the purpose was to engender a
high degree of confidence on the part of
the public regarding the conduct of
such investigation, study and hearings.
Extending the life of the committee be-
yond that date, and in particular ex-
tending it for an indefinite period of
time would undermine this objective.
Inevitably, in my judgment, it would
diminish public confidence in the im-
partiality of this inquiry.

Now, regrettably, an intensification
of the hearing schedule was not pur-
sued through January and February.
So we came to the end of February and
the majority, now led by Chairman
D’AMATO, has proposed an unlimited

extension of time to continue the Sen-
ate investigation. That proposal was
reported out of both the Banking Com-
mittee and the Rules Committee on a
straight partisan vote, in contrast to
the vote on Senate Resolution 120 last
May.

The minority proposed an alter-
native. We took the position in mid-
January that this inquiry could be fin-
ished by the end of February, pursuant
to Senate Resolution 120, but the kind
of hearing schedule that would have
been necessary to accomplish that was
regrettably never adopted. In fact, we
have a situation in which in the 2-
month period, we saw opportunities to
conduct hearings simply pass by. In
January, we held one hearing this
week, two hearings this week, two this
week, two that week. So we held seven
hearings in the entire month of Janu-
ary. January—seven hearings.

I remind Senators that last summer
this very same committee in the period
between July 18 and August 10, a period
of 3 weeks, held 13 days of public hear-
ings, 13 days of public hearings. The
Iran-Contra committee, in a month,
held 21 days of public hearings. Mr.
President, seven hearings in the month
of January; the pace in February was
the same. The month of February we
held eight hearings. All of these oppor-
tunities to hold hearings on all these
other days did not take place, and in
the last 2 weeks we held 1 day of hear-
ings out of nine possibilities. So we
came to the end of February not hav-
ing intensified the hearing schedule,
and Chairman D’AMATO and the major-
ity now propose an indefinite extension
of the hearing schedule.

Additional funding, $600,000, which, of
course, would bring Senate expendi-
tures on the investigation of
Whitewater matters to $2 million—
$400,000 in the previous Congress,
$950,000 thus far by this committee, and
an additional $600,000. Now, of course,
that does not take into account the
money spent by the independent coun-
sel, which is now understood to be
above $25 million, and increasing at
about the rate of $1 million a month; or
the money spent by the RTC on a civil
investigation carried out by the Pills-
bury Madison firm, which comes in at
just under $4 million. We have no firm
figure on the amount spent by House
committees looking into the
Whitewater matter, nor a figure for the
money spent by Federal agencies as-
sisting with or responding to these in-
vestigations. In any event, it is very
clear that the amount spent in total,
including all of these various sources,
is over $30 million.

Senator DASCHLE wrote to Senator
DOLE on the 23d of January, at the
time the report was filed, in which the
minority argued very strongly that the
committee should undertake an inten-
sified hearing schedule in the final 6
weeks, to complete its investigation by
the February 29 date, and said in his
letter, and I am quoting Senator
DASCHLE now:
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It is well within the special committee’s

ability to complete its inquiry by February
29. The committee can and should adopt a
hearing schedule over the next 6 weeks that
will enable it to meet the Senate’s des-
ignated timetable.

As I indicated, no serious effort to in-
tensify the hearing schedule in order to
meet the February 29th deadline oc-
curred. In fact, in the last week no
hearing whatever was held. In the week
before, only one hearing was held. In
other weeks, more hearings were held,
two hearings, maybe three hearings,
but often with witnesses who had little
new to contribute to the investigation.

Senator DASCHLE has put forth an al-
ternative proposal in an effort, really,
to demonstrate reasonableness, with
respect to the work of the committee,
and that is to provide an additional 5
weeks, until April 3, for the special
committee to complete its hearing
schedule, and until May 10 for the com-
mittee to complete its final report and
to pay for this extra time by additional
funding of $185,000.

In my view, 5 weeks of additional
hearings should be more than adequate
to complete the so-called Arkansas
phase of this investigation, a phase
which concerns events that occurred in
Arkansas some 10 years ago, events
which have been widely reported on
since the 1992 Presidential campaign,
about which much is already known.

So, in an effort to reach an under-
standing, Senator DASCHLE said we felt
that you could have completed your
work by the deadline, by February 29,
as was enacted by the Senate last May
when they passed the resolution estab-
lishing the committee. That rep-
resented the judgment and the consen-
sus of this body in passing that resolu-
tion 96 to 3. And when we reached the
mid-January point, it was clearly
stressed that an intensified schedule
would enable the committee to com-
plete its work on time and within
budget. That did not happen. We did
not get that intensification of sched-
ule. Now we come, having passed the
29th of February, with Chairman
D’AMATO and the majority arguing
that they now want an indefinite ex-
tension of this inquiry.

I think the proposal put forth by the
minority leader, Senator DASCHLE, is
an eminently reasonable one. Regret-
tably, it was rejected in the Banking
Committee on a straight party-line
vote and rejected again in the Rules
Committee by a straight party-line
vote. In other words, the Democratic
position was, we are willing to provide
a limited extension in order to finish
up the things that you assert are not
yet done and will provide a limited
amount of time. We do not want to, in
effect, commit $600,000, but we will
commit $185,000.

Let me compare and contrast the
procedure that has been followed with
respect to this resolution and the ques-
tion of its extension with what oc-
curred on the Iran-Contra hearings
which took place in 1987, namely the

year preceding a Presidential election
year, just as 1995 precedes a Presi-
dential election year. In considering a
resolution with respect to Iran-Contra,
Senator DOLE took the very strong po-
sition that the inquiry ought not to ex-
tend into the Presidential election
year.

In fact, in early 1987, when Congress
was considering establishing a special
committee on Iran-Contra, some advo-
cated that it have a long timeframe,
extending into 1988, in order to com-
plete its work. There was a conflict be-
tween some Democrats in the House
and Senate who wanted no time limita-
tions placed on the committee, and Re-
publican Members, led by Senator
DOLE, who wanted the hearings com-
pleted within 2 or 3 months. And, of
course, it was pointed out at the time,
and escaped no one’s attention, that an
investigation that spilled into 1988
would only place the Republicans in a
defensive posture during the Presi-
dential election year.

Senator INOUYE, who was selected to
chair the special committee, and Con-
gressman HAMILTON, who was selected
as its vice chairman, recommended at
the time rejecting the opportunity to
prolong, and thereby exploit for politi-
cal purposes, President Reagan’s dif-
ficulties. They determined, in fact,
that 10 months would provide enough
time to carry out the inquiry, and that
was the requirement under which the
Iran-Contra Committee moved forward.
In fact, during the Senate debate on
the resolution to establish a select
committee on Iran-Contra, Senator
DOLE noted the good-faith effort of
these two congressional leaders to have
the committee complete its work in a
timely manner.

He stated:
I am heartened by what I understand to be

the strong commitment of both the chair-
man and vice chairman to avoid fishing ex-
peditions and to keep the committee focused
on the real issues here.

And the time period then was short-
ened from what many had been propos-
ing in order to expedite and complete
work on the matter and not carry it
into the 1988 election year. Senator
DOLE argued during floor debate that
the country had many other matters to
deal with, and stated:

With all these policy decisions facing us,
the Senate—and the country, for that mat-
ter—cannot afford to be consumed by the
Iranian arms sales affair.

So the Senate, when it passed the
resolution, established a termination
date well before the end of 1987. The
termination date in our resolution was
in February 1996. But it was recognized
that that was to avoid going further
into a Presidential election year. In
doing that, Senator DOLE said:

There is still a national agenda that needs
to be pursued. There are a number of issues
that must be addressed, and the American
people are concerned about the Iran-Contra
matter. But they are also concerned about
the budget, about the trade bill, about
health care, and a whole host of issues that
we will have to address in this Chamber.

He went on to say:
The problems of the past, as important as

they are, are not as important as the future.
And, further, if we get bogged down in finger
pointing, in tearing down the President and
the administration, we are just not going to
be up to the challenges ahead, and all of us—
all Americans—will be the losers.

I want to compare these two ways of
proceeding because it was debated at
the time of Iran-Contra, and recognized
some push to extend it into 1988 and
into the Presidential election year.
That was very strongly opposed by
Senator DOLE, and by his colleagues. In
the end, Senator INOUYE and Rep-
resentative HAMILTON turned down the
opportunity to prolong the inquiry into
the election year and extend it for po-
litical purposes.

This Senate last May took, in effect,
the same position by establishing the
February 29, 1996 date. We have now
reached that date. And we find the ma-
jority asking for an unlimited exten-
sion of this inquiry after we have been
through a period in which neither in
January nor in February did the com-
mittee embark upon an intense hearing
schedule in order to finish its work by
the cutoff date.

As I have indicated, we had hearings
only 8 days in the month of February,
a month when the Senate was not in
session. And, therefore, when it was
possible to really devote all day every
day to this issue, there were no hear-
ings in the last week in February—only
one hearing in the next to the last
week. And in the month of January,
once again, many days without any
hearings by the special committee, 7
days of hearings out of the entire
month, 8 days in February. That is a
total of 15 days over 2 months.

As I indicated earlier, this very com-
mittee last summer in the latter part
of July and the first part of August—
over a 3-week period—held 13 days of
hearings. But let us compare it with
Iran-Contra because that was a situa-
tion in which the Democrats controlled
the Congress. There was a Republican
administration.

The question then was, what was fair
in terms of carrying out this inquiry,
and how far should it extend into the
Presidential election year? And the
Democrats took the position that they
were not going to extend it into the
Presidential election year. They were
going to try to keep politics out of the
inquiry. Obviously, the further it goes
into a Presidential election year, the
more politics will come into the in-
quiry. And there is just no doubt about
that, and the more the public’s con-
fidence in the impartiality of the in-
quiry will be eroded.

In 1987, in order to meet this sched-
ule, the Iran-Contra committee held 21
days of hearings between July 7 and
August 6. It met literally every Mon-
day through Friday with three excep-
tions over a 5-week period.

So there was an intense set of hear-
ings in order to carry through on the
undertaking that had been made to fin-
ish up its work in a timely fashion and
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avoid keeping the matter out of the
1988 Presidential election year—21 days
of hearings with only three open days
during that period so it could complete
its hearing work within the timeframe
set forth in the resolution which estab-
lished it; 21 days of hearings.

Contrast that—the undertaking made
by the Democratic Congress then deal-
ing with a Republican administration
to honor the effort to keep it out of the
election year and out of the political
context and not to have it turn into a
partisan endeavor. Contrast this hear-
ing schedule—21 days of hearings in a
1-month period—with a hearing sched-
ule that has been pursued by this com-
mittee over the last 2 months. There
were only 8 days of hearings in Feb-
ruary, and only 7 days of hearings in
January for a total of 15; 15 days over
2 months when Iran-Contra had 21 days
in a month and finished up its work to
honor the undertaking not to project it
into a political year.

My own view is that the committee
could and should have finished its work
by the 29th of February as it was
charged to do by the resolution that
was adopted by this body last May. I
think that was well within the ability
of the committee. It did not happen.
We are now confronted with a situation
in which Chairman D’AMATO and his
colleagues seek an unlimited extension
of the work of the committee.

Senator DASCHLE indicated on the 23d
of January that he thought the com-
mittee could complete its work by Feb-
ruary 29. Now he has prepared and has
offered an alternative in an effort to
accommodate providing some addi-
tional time and funding for the com-
mittee to carry on its work.

In other words, we felt the commit-
tee should have finished by February
29. They did not follow a schedule in
order to do that. The question is, what
now? Senator DASCHLE, in an effort to
accommodate, proposed providing addi-
tional weeks of hearings, until April 3
to complete a hearing schedule, until
May 10 to complete a final report, and
funding to carry out this work of
$185,000 as contrasted with the $600,000
that Chairman D’AMATO is seeking for
an indefinite extension of the work of
the committee. In other words, an ex-
tension that can go throughout 1996
and obviously right into the Presi-
dential campaign—an extension which,
in my judgment, by prolonging the in-
vestigation well into a Presidential
election year, will contribute to a pub-
lic perception that the investigation is
being conducted for political purposes.

It needs to be understood, of course,
that the independent counsel’s inquiry
will continue. The independent counsel
operates under, in effect, his own stat-
ute. He has unlimited funding. So that
inquiry will go on as long as the inde-
pendent counsel deems that it should
go on. Judge Walsh, as we know, went
on many, many years with respect to
Iran-Contra and, in fact, continued his
work after the hearings were con-
cluded.

These hearings have never been relat-
ed to the work of the independent
counsel because the independent coun-
sel is on a separate track. As we saw in
Iran-Contra, those hearings ended in
the latter part of 1987, but the inde-
pendent counsel continued his work. Of
course the work of the current inde-
pendent counsel, Kenneth Starr, will
go forward. He was given broad author-
ity by a special panel of Federal judges
to investigate Whitewater. He has a
staff that eclipses anything that is
available to any other inquiry that is
now going on—we understand 30 attor-
neys and over 100 FBI and IRS agents;
and the Independent Counsel Reauthor-
ization Act sets no cap on the cost of
his investigation, which has been over
$25 million thus far.

So, in fact, many have raised the
point: Let the independent counsel do
the inquiry, on the premise that that is
a less political arena than hearings
conducted here in the Congress, par-
ticularly hearings that go into the
election year itself, so you have politi-
cians looking at politicians in a politi-
cal year, and that is almost certain to
guarantee a political endeavor.

Now, in addition, it is important to
realize that the RTC-commissioned re-
port, the comprehensive report by an
independent law firm, Pillsbury, Madi-
son & Sutro, headed by a former Re-
publican U.S. attorney, Jay Stephens,
that report has now been made public.
It cost almost $4 million. And the con-
clusion transmitted to the RTC was
that they found no basis on which the
RTC should bring any actions, civil ac-
tions, with respect to the various mat-
ters which they investigated.

That represents a very thorough and
comprehensive review.

Let me turn for a moment to the ar-
gument about requiring an open-ended
extension in order to get more mate-
rial. It is my understanding that the
White House has now provided all ma-
terial requested with the exception of
those further requests made to it by
the special committee over the last 2
or 3 weeks.

A great to-do is made about material
that has been provided 2 weeks ago, a
month ago, in early January. But the
important thing to remember is that
that material was provided; so it was
made available to the committee. Peo-
ple raise a lot of commotion about the
fact that Mr. Gearan’s notes were not
provided earlier on. Well, they were
provided. He has an explanation as to
why they were not provided earlier on.
In any event, the committee got them,
reviewed them, and held a hearing with
Mr. Gearan, an all-day hearing, in
which we went over those notes. The
same thing is true of the notes with re-
spect to Mr. Ickes.

On March 6, today, Jane Sherburne,
the special counsel to the President,
sent a letter to Chairman D’AMATO and
to me as the ranking member in which
she states the following, and I am
quoting the letter:

Since the issuance of the Special Commit-
tee subpoena on October 30, 1995, the White

House has received some 30 new requests
from the Chairman. This letter summarizes
the status of our response to those requests.

We have provided responses to every re-
quest with the exception of two new requests
for e-mail made by the Chairman in Feb-
ruary after we reached what we had under-
stood was the Committee’s finalized e-mail
request memorialized in my letter to the
Committee on January 23, 1996. One of these
additional e-mail requests relates to the dis-
covery of copies of Rose Law Firm billing
records which were provided to the commit-
tee on January 5, 1996, 2 weeks before the
Committee staff finalized its e-mail request.

The other outstanding e-mail request re-
lates to the period January 3 through Janu-
ary 12, 1994. This request was first made on
February 16, 1996, but without the necessary
detail to conduct the retrieval process. The
detail was later provided by staff orally.

As you are aware, the Executive Office of
the President already has incurred over
$138,000 in out-of-pocket costs for the e-mail
described in my January 23, 1996, letter. Al-
though we retrieved and reviewed 10 boxes of
e-mails, this effort produced nothing of use
to the committee’s inquiry. Nonetheless, we
are undertaking to respond to the new re-
quests and hope to provide you with the re-
sults shortly.

Those are additional requests that
were made. The original e-mail re-
quests—well, the original request was
so broad that no one really reasonably
could be expected to respond to it, and
after extended discussions, we were
able to reach an agreement to focus
those e-mail requests and to narrow
them down, and they now have all been
provided.

In addition, the White House under-
took to verify that all documents pro-
vided to the counsel’s office by White
House staff beginning in March 1994
had been reviewed and produced to the
committee as responsive. They also un-
dertook to verify that all relevant
White House files of certain former
White House officials that may contain
responsive material had been reviewed.
So they undertook to go back and
scrub down the files as a consequence
of a couple of these late-arriving re-
quests.

As a consequence of that work, some
additional material—not much—has
been provided to the committee. Most
of them are copies or duplicates of
matters that had previously been pro-
duced to the committee.

But that material has also now been
received by the committee. So the
committee now has all of this material
in hand, which seems to me argues
very strongly for an approach as the
one contained in that put forth by the
minority leader, by Senator DASCHLE,
which would provide the committee an
extension of 5 weeks from the termi-
nation date in order to complete its in-
quiry, some additional time in order to
do its report, and would really serve to
keep this matter out of the election
year.

There has been no counterresponse to
that proposal of the distinguished mi-
nority leader, Senator DASCHLE. I
mean, the original proposition put for-
ward by Chairman D’AMATO was an in-
definite extension and $600,000. Senator
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DASCHLE and his colleagues on this side
of the aisle indicated that that was un-
acceptable because it would really po-
liticize this inquiry even further in an
election year and guarantee that it
would turn into a partisan political en-
deavor.

The Democrats did not seek to do
that with Iran-Contra in 1987, and I am
frank to say I do not think the Repub-
licans should seek to do that with
Whitewater in 1996.

The leader, faced with this proposal
for an unlimited extension, offered
what I think was a very reasonable
proposal. That is for an extension until
the 3d of April for hearings and until
the 10th of May for the report. That
has not elicited any response from my
colleagues on the other side other than
simply to press forward with their
original proposal, which was for an in-
definite extension and an additional
$600,000.

As we have indicated, Mr. President,
we do not think that is necessary or re-
quired. We believe an indefinite pro-
posal would make this inquiry simply a
partisan political endeavor. We note
that while the original resolution was
passed by a very overwhelming biparti-
san vote of 96 to 3, the proposal for an
unlimited extension is moving along
simply on the basis of a straight party
vote.

We do not believe that is the way
this matter should be handled. I urge
my colleagues on the other side to look
again at the proposal put forth by the
minority leader, which I think rep-
resents a very reasonable proposition.

I yield the floor.
Mr. BENNETT addressed the Chair.
The PRESIDING OFFICER. The Sen-

ator from Utah.
Mr. BENNETT. Mr. President, I have

several observations and reactions to
the statement by the Senator from
Maryland, who has done his usual thor-
ough job of examining a whole series of
issues. But if I may, Mr. President,
without being disrespectful of my col-
league, I would like to say that those
issues are not particularly significant
or relevant to what we are talking
about here. I was not in the Senate
when the Senate discussed Iran-Contra
or the October Surprise or Watergate
or any of the other hearings that he
has discussed in such detail.

The issue before us is not whether or
not those hearings were conducted well
or badly, whether they were conducted
in a speedy and expeditious manner or
whether they were dragged out. The
issue is whether or not this committee
deserves more time to do its work. For
that reason, I will not really debate
with the Senator from Maryland any-
thing regarding Iran-Contra or October
Surprise or any other such issue.

The committee clearly needs more
time to conclude its work. That is a
given. The proposal offered to the Sen-
ate by the distinguished Democratic
leader very specifically demonstrates a
recognition of the fact that the com-
mittee needs more time. So I do not
think that question is at issue.

The only question at issue before us
is, how much time do we need? To me,
the answer to that is very simple—as
much time as it takes to get the facts.
It is not that complicated. I know my
colleague from Florida spoke for 45
minutes, close to an hour. My col-
league from Maryland has spoken for
the same period of time.

To me, the issue is very simple—how
much time will it take to get the facts?
Not how much time has elapsed or how
many witnesses we have heard or how
many documents have been furnished
or how much time was taken in an-
other controversy that took place
years ago. How much time do we need
to get the facts?

In an effort to try to come to that
point, Mr. President, I turn to the
press. I will quote briefly from three
editorials. They have been quoted ex-
tensively before. They have been put in
the RECORD. So I will simply summa-
rize some of them on the point that I
have tried to make.

The Washington Post on the 25th of
February, after examining many of the
outstanding issues says this in conclu-
sion:

Who knows where this all will lead? The
committee clearly needs time to sift through
these late-arriving papers as well as inter-
view witnesses now unavailable because they
are key figures in the Whitewater-related
trials. So like it or not, the Senate commit-
tee is unlikely to go off into the sunset at
month’s end when its mandate expires. Clin-
ton officials have done their share to extend
the committee’s life.

That summarizes it for me, Mr.
President. Why do we need more time?
Because Clinton officials have not been
as forthcoming as they should have
been. The committee clearly needs
time for two reasons. One, to sift
through these late-arriving papers.
Why are they late arriving? Again, ask
President Clinton and his staff. The
committee has been asking for them
for months. One, to sift through these
late-arriving papers, and, two, inter-
view witnesses who are now unavail-
able because they are key figures in
the Whitewater-related trials. Very
straightforward. All right.

The New York Times, making com-
ment in the aftermath of the Iowa and
New Hampshire primaries says:

The excitement of Iowa, New Hampshire
has diverted attention from the Senate
Whitewater committee and its investigation
into the Rose Law Firm’s migrating files.

I think that is an interesting phrase,
the law firm’s ‘‘migrating files.’’

Naturally this pleases the White House—

Referring to the lack of focus on
this—

Naturally this pleases the White House and
its allies, who hope to use the interregnum
to let their ‘so what’ arguments take root.
David Kendall, the Clinton’s private attor-
ney, says the curious paper trail is just one
of the meaningless mysteries of Whitewater.

Then the Times says:
There are mysteries here, but they are not

meaningless.

Then it goes on again through that
which has been covered so many times.

I do not feel the necessity of covering
it one more time. But the Times con-
cludes:

Perhaps the files will also show that there
was no coverup associated with moving and
storing these files.

And this sentence—I love it, because
it summarizes what we are talking
about.

Inanimate objects do not move themselves.
It is pointless to ask Senators and the inde-
pendent prosecutors to fold their inquiry on
the basis of the facts that have emerged so
far. To do so would be a dereliction of their
duties.

I love the way this is written. The
‘‘migrating files,’’ ‘‘inanimate objects
do not move themselves.’’

Another newspaper, USA Today, of-
fered these comments in an editorial.
It leads off with this statement:

This week author Hillary Rodham Clinton
was supposed to inform the nation about the
truths kids can tell us. Instead, the nation is
confronted with questions about whether the
First Lady is telling the whole truth about
her role in two scandals, Whitewater and
Travelgate, and whether she and her husband
can stop acting like children when asked
about it.

It then goes on to list a series of
questions. Again, they have been
talked about at great length here on
the floor. I see no point in asking them
again just for the sake of asking them.

But I like the conclusion, again, out
of this editorial, after renewing all of
these questions. It says:

Mrs. Clinton and the President have raised
these questions, not Republicans.

I would like to repeat that for em-
phasis, Mr. President:

Mrs. Clinton and the President have raised
these questions, not Republicans. They’ve
created the impression they may be covering
something up by being less than thorough in
responding to legitimate demands for infor-
mation. This is not the first time Mrs. Clin-
ton has run into such a problem. She never
fully explained profits from the 1970’s com-
modities trades. Concerns linger that the
profits came from wealthy friends seeking
political favors.

And then the conclusion, with which
I heartily agree:

Rather than pointing fingers at the inves-
tigators, the Clintons need to offer some
apologies, plus the whole truth of what went
on with Madison, Whitewater and the travel
office. Nothing less will do.

That is the end of that editorial.
So, Mr. President, I could go on for a

significant period of time and review
what we found out in the committee,
rehearse the various things that were
said, comment once again on the incon-
sistencies and all of the rest of that. I
do not see that it serves much purpose.
The issue is very clear: How much
more time does the committee need?

I believe that the offer made by the
Democratic leader is for an insufficient
amount of time. The argument is made
that the request made by the chairman
of the committee for no firm date is
too much time. I hope both sides can
sit down and say somewhere between
the offer made by the Democratic lead-
er and the request for an open-ended
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inquiry made by the chairman, we can
find a date that can satisfy the two re-
quirements, which are sufficient time
to sift through the late-arriving docu-
ments and enough time for us to hear
from the witnesses who are currently
unavailable.

To me, it is not that hard to figure
out. I hope that we can arrive at that
point instead of tying up the Senate in
endless rehashing of issues that, as I
say, in my view, are not relevant.

I go back to the New York Times for
the final summary of that when the
New York Times said editorially, for
the Democrats to filibuster this re-
quest will look like silly stonewalling.

Mr. President, I suggest the absence
of a quorum.

Mr. SARBANES addressed the Chair.
Mr. BENNETT. I withdraw the re-

quest.
The PRESIDING OFFICER. The Sen-

ator from Maryland.
Mr. SARBANES. Mr. President, I al-

ways enjoy the opportunity for an ex-
change with my distinguished col-
league from Utah. I listened carefully
as he quoted from the Washington Post
editorial headed ‘‘Extend the
Whitewater Committee.’’ The Post
then, in a subsequent editorial headed
‘‘Extend, But With Limits,’’ said:

. . . but the Senate should require the
committee to complete its work and produce
a final report by a fixed date.

It then goes on to say, and this may,
in effect, get into the area that the
Senator was perhaps suggesting in his
comments because I listened very care-
fully and as I made the point myself,
the proposal we had from the other side
was an unlimited extension.

Mr. BENNETT. Yes.
Mr. SARBANES. The distinguished

Democratic leader said, ‘‘Well, we can’t
agree to an unlimited extension, but
we are prepared to offer carrying it for-
ward.’’ We have heard nothing back
with respect to that. So that is the
play on this issue.

This editorial said:
Democrats want to keep the committee on

a short leash by extending hearings to April
3rd with a final report to follow by May 10th.
A limited extension makes sense, but an un-
reasonably short deadline does not. Five
weeks may not be enough time for the com-
mittee to do a credible job. Instead, the Sen-
ate should give the committee more running
room, but aim for ending the entire proceed-
ing before summer when the campaign sea-
son really heats up. That would argue for
permitting the probe to continue through
April or early May.

And, of course, we had suggested
April 3.

I know the Senator has quoted some
editorials that say go on with this
thing. There are other editorials, of
course, which take just the opposite
point of view.

Mr. BENNETT. Mr. President, may I
respond to that very quickly?

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The Sen-
ator from Maryland has the floor. Does
the Senator yield?

Mr. SARBANES. I certainly yield to
my colleague.

Mr. BENNETT. I have to leave the
floor, and I thank my colleague from
Maryland for his courtesy. I simply
say, Mr. President, that subsequent
editorial that the Senator from Mary-
land quoted is in exactly the vein of
what I am talking about, that I find
the Democratic leader’s proposal to be
too short a leash, but this Senator
would not object if we met the two ob-
jectives called for of enough time to
sift through the late-arriving papers
and the ability to interview witnesses
who are currently unavailable. My only
objection to the proposal made by the
Democratic leader is that it does not
provide for meeting those two.

So I say to the Senator from Mary-
land, Mr. President, that this Senator
would be willing to have some kind of
agreement along the lines that he is
now talking about. My objection is to
the cutoff date in the proposal made by
the Democratic leader which I think is
too short a leash.

Mr. SARBANES. Mr. President, let
me point out that there are other edi-
torial comments around the country
which actually think this should end
right now, period.

The Sacramento Bee on March 2 had
an editorial, ‘‘Enough of Whitewater.’’
Let me quote a couple of paragraphs:

Senator Alfonse D’Amato, the chairman of
the Senate Whitewater committee and chair-
man of Senator Bob Dole’s Presidential cam-
paign in New York, wants to extend his hear-
ings indefinitely, or at least one presumes
until after the November elections. The com-
mittee’s authorization and funding ran out
Thursday, and the Democrats, in part for re-
lated political reasons, want to shut the
committee hearings down. In this case, the
Democrats have the best of the argument by
a country mile. With every passing day, the
hearings have looked more like a fishing ex-
pedition in the Dead Sea.

I ask unanimous consent that the en-
tire text of that editorial be printed in
the RECORD.

There being no objection, the edi-
torial was ordered to be printed in the
RECORD, as follows:

[From the Sacramento Bee, Mar. 2, 1996]
ENOUGH OF WHITEWATER

Sen. Alfonse D’Amato, the chairman of the
Senate Whitewater Committee and chairman
of Sen. Bob Dole’s presidential campaign in
New York, wants to extend his hearings in-
definitely—or least, one presumes, until
after the November elections. The commit-
tee’s authorization and funding ran out
Thursday and the Democrats, in part for re-
lated political reasons, want to shut the
committee hearing down.

In this case, the Democrats have the best
of the argument by a country mile. With
every passing day, the hearings have looked
more like a fishing expedition in the Dead
Sea.

Given the fact that D’Amato’s mighty and
costly labors have so far caught little but
crabs; that there is a special prosecutor
going over the same ground; that there have
already been nearly 20 months of Senate
hearings, first under the Democrats, then
under the Republicans; that a couple of
House committees have held their own hear-
ings; and that an armada of journalists has
covered the ground for more than three
years, you’d think that whatever Whitewater
is had been covered to death.

Thursday, the Democrats, though in the
minority, managed to use parliamentary de-
vices to block the indefinite extension that
D’Amato asked for. They’re willing, they
said, to accept a five-week extension to wrap
up the hearings, then another six weeks to
allow the committee to write a report. That,
said D’Amato, sends ‘‘the unmistakable mes-
sage that (the Democrats) want to prevent
the American people from learning the full
facts about Whitewater.’’

In fact, it ought to be plenty. Even if every
charge were true, the political cronyism and
favoritism allegedly bestowed in connection
with the Whitewater development while Bill
Clinton was governor of Arkansas—and so
far only alleged—would be of no interest to
any congressional committee were it not for
the fact that Clinton is present. Similar she-
nanigans—and worse—occur routinely in
state after state. Why isn’t D’Amato inves-
tigating Lamar Alexander, who benefited
richly from business cronies during his days
as governor of Tennessee and as president of
its state university?

There may well have been attempts in the
Clinton White House to cover up the dealings
among the Clinton, the Whitewater develop-
ment company and the failed Arkansas sav-
ings and loan that helped to bankroll it.
There was certainly a great deal of
stonewalling and evasive behavior. But Ken-
neth Starr, the special prosecutor, has been
sparing no effort to investigate both that
and related matters. What is it that
D’Amato can credibly establish that Starr
can’t.

Mr. SARBANES. Mr. President, fi-
nally an editorial in the Atlanta Con-
stitution which calls for bringing this
inquiry to an end. It goes on to point
out, ‘‘one, that a recent Resolution
Trust Corporation investigation found
no hint of impropriety by the Clintons
regarding their Whitewater involve-
ment.’’

It goes on to say:
The first couple is still under investigation

by Independent Counsel, Kenneth Starr, a
former Reagan Justice Department official,
who can be expected to scrutinize the Clin-
ton’s legal and business affairs rigorously.
Any additional sleuthing by Senator
D’Amato would be a waste of taxpayers’
money.

I ask unanimous consent that that
editorial be printed in the RECORD as
well.

There being no objection, the edi-
torial was ordered to be printed in the
RECORD, as follows:

[From the Atlanta Constitution, Feb. 15,
1996]

TAKE D’AMATO OFF CLINTONS’ CASE

The Senate’s Watergate hearings of 1973–74
were momentous, delving into White House
abuses of power and leading to the resigna-
tion of a disgraced president and the impris-
onment of many of his aides. They lasted 279
days.

Next week, Sen. Alfonse D’Amato (R-N.Y.)
and his fellow Whitewater investigators will
surpass that mark (today is the 275th day),
and they have nothing anywhere near con-
clusive to show for their labors. To put mat-
ters in context, all they have to ponder is a
fairly obscure 1980s real estate and banking
scandal in Arkansas.

With a Feb. 29 expiration date for his spe-
cial panel staring him in the face, D’Amato
has the effrontery to ask the Senate for
more time and money to continue drilling
dry investigative holes. Specifically, he
wants open-ended authority and another
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$600,000. That’s on top of the $950,000 his com-
mittee has spent so far, plus $400,000 that was
devoted to a Senate Banking Committee in-
quiry into Whitewater in 1994.

The partisan motives behind D’Amato’s re-
quest couldn’t be more obvious. Here he is, a
chief political strategist for the leading Re-
publican contender for the presidency, Bob
Dole, seeking to legitimize the committee’s
hectoring of President and Mrs. Clinton well
into the campaign season.

If the panel could demonstrate a glimmer
of a hot new lead connecting the Clintons to
the Arkansas scams, D’Amato’s appeal for an
extension might have merit. Invariably,
though, the committee’s supposed revela-
tions have evaporated for want of substance.
Witnesses who testified in the past are being
summoned back, often to go over familiar
ground. Chelsea Clinton’s former nanny had
to appear again this week, for heaven’s sake.

This is not to let the Clintons off the hook.
They might have allayed suspicions about
themselves long ago if they had promptly
produced documentation of their Arkansas
business and legal dealings. But lawyerly
reticence, however politically unwise, by no
means indicates guilt. Remember that a re-
cent Resolution Trust Corp. investigation
found no hint of impropriety by the Clintons
regarding their Whitewater involvement.

The first couple is still under investigation
by independent counsel Kenneth Starr, a
former Reagan Justice Department official
who can be expected to scrutinize the Clin-
tons’ legal and business affairs rigorously.
Any additional sleuthing by D’Amato would
be a waste of taxpayers’ money.

Mr. SARBANES. Mr. President, the
Greensboro, NC, News and Record had
an editorial headed ‘‘Whitewater Hear-
ing Needs To Wind Down.’’ Let me just
quote a couple of paragraphs from that:

A legitimate probe is becoming a partisan
sledgehammer.

Let me repeat that:
A legitimate probe is becoming a partisan

sledgehammer. The Senate Whitewater hear-
ings, led since last July by Senator Al
D’Amato (R–NY), have served their purpose.
It’s time to wrap this thing up before the
election season.

Then they end that editorial with
this comment:

Let the GOP use the fruits of D’Amato’s la-
bors as they will in the coming campaign,
but don’t let the opposition party run a
smear campaign at public expense.

I ask unanimous consent that that
editorial be printed in the RECORD.

There being no objection, the edi-
torial was ordered to be printed in the
RECORD, as follows:
WHITEWATER HEARING NEEDS TO WIND DOWN

A legitimate probe is becoming a partisan
sledgehammer.

The Senate Whitewater hearings led since
last July by Sen. Al D’Amato, R–N.Y., have
served their purpose. It’s time to wrap this
thing up before the election season.

The committee has documented the Clin-
ton’s various relationships with a bankrupt
Arkansas savings and loan and related enter-
prises. It has developed evidence of a damage
control campaign run from the White House.
And it has revealed a mean and petty episode
involving the White House travel office. The
portrait of Arkansas politics curing the ’80s
is not a pretty one.

All of this—including the mysterious, be-
lated appearance in the White House of docu-
ments that had been subpoenaed by the com-
mittee months earler—will surely be politi-
cally damaging to the Clintons. D’Amato’s

committee should sum up its findings, pub-
lish them for all to see, and go on to some-
thing else. The committee has done its work,
sometimes more than once.

Still, D’Amato and company haven’t had
enough. The New York senator wants his
mandate, which has already eaten up $1 mil-
lion of your money, extended indefinitely.
He has asked for another $600,000.

Republicans charge that it has been the
White House’s desultory compliance with the
committee’s requests that has slowed its
work, necessitating the extension of this ex-
pensive and fruitless exercise. But that argu-
ment is becoming tedious.

The committee has already subpoenaed ev-
erybody and every document in sight. The
committee’s thoroughness is not in question.
The committee’s excesses are. They have
begun to eat into its credibility.

Senator D’Amato tries to explain away his
obvious conflict of interest by making the
laughable argument that his role as New
York chairman of the Bob Dole campaign
has no connection to his use of the Senate
committee. Here’s what’s happending.

D’Amato is carrying on Dole’s campaign in
the Senate with repetitious hearings that
highlight testimony from the White House
staff, then outside the Senate chambers with
press conferences. Covering Whitewater once
in 1995 was a legitimate Senate inquiry. Re-
hashing it in 1996, an election year, is ex-
ploiting the forum to damage the president.

What began as only a partly political exer-
cise has over the months become blatantly
that, thanks to D’Amato and his North Caro-
lina ally, Sen. Lauch Faircloth.

The committee had good reason to look
into the Clintons’ role in the Madison Guar-
anty Savings & Loan mess and related mat-
ters. But the panel majority, and especially
the chairman, have turned a search for the
truth into a partisan vendetta against the
Clintons. Not even a casual observer of these
proceedings could miss the contempt that
the committee chairman has for the presi-
dent and his wife. Allowing these hearings to
go on indefinitely would be giving
D’Amato—and by extension the legislative
branch—a license to harass the executive.

There’s no reason to let the Clintons off
the hook. An independent counsel is plowing
the same ground—including the serious alle-
gations that the White House may have at-
tempted to obstruct justice and that Clinton
exercised undue influence over savings and
loan regulators while governor of Arkansas.
There is no need for taxpayers to pay for this
work twice and then again, particularly not
when the Senate committee has so obviously
become an arm of the Republican campaign
to unseat the President.

Let the GOP use the fruits of D’Amato’s
labor as it will in the coming campaign. But
don’t let the opposition party run its smear
campaign at public expense.

Mr. SARBANES. Mr. President, I
yield the floor.

Mr. FAIRCLOTH. Mr. President, it
would appear that we are going into
not a debate on the issues here, but a
debate on who can find the best edi-
torials. I say to the Senator from
Maryland that he read from the
Greensboro, NC, News and Record. I
have found, over the few years that I
have been in the Senate, when I get an
unfavorable editorial in the News and
Record, I finally did something right.
But since we are going into the edi-
torials, I will read one from USA
Today. I am quoting from the last four
paragraphs:

Why did it take so long to find the papers?
Subpoenas for Travelgate and Whitewater

documents are many months old. Failure to
provide them quickly warranted legal ac-
tion. The statute of limitations for filing
suits against Madison lawyers lapsed just
days before the bills were produced. How
could the White House have missed them?
Mrs. Clinton and the President have raised
questions, not Republicans. They have cre-
ated the impression they may be covering up
something by being less than thorough in re-
sponding to legitimate demands for informa-
tion. This is not the first time Mrs. Clinton
has run into such a problem. She never fully
explained profits from a 1970 commodity
trade—

And they are being kind to her when
they say ‘‘never fully explained.’’ She
never even slightly explained.

Concerns linger that the profits came from
wealthy friends seeking political favors.
There has never been any explanation of
that. Rather than pointing fingers at the in-
vestigators, the Clintons need to offer some
apologies, plus the whole truth about what
went on with Madison, Whitewater, and the
travel office. Nothing less will do.

Now, that is from USA Today, Janu-
ary 10, 1996.

Mr. President, we have been through
this charade with the administration
for more than 2 years now. It is time
that it ends, and the length and
amount of time that we have expended
in these investigations is brought on
not by the Republicans on the commit-
tee, but by the delay of the White
House in providing subpoenaed infor-
mation. That is simply the reason we
are here today asking to extend the
length of the resolution.

Mr. President, the central issue in
this debate is this: Will the U.S. Sen-
ate, for the first time in my memory,
take the affirmative step of refusing to
investigate a scandal of public corrup-
tion? That is very simply what we are
talking about doing with the filibuster
here today—it is that the Senate is
saying, ‘‘We are not going to inves-
tigate these people. We do not want to
get into it.’’

The length of the investigation is ir-
relevant. As I said, the delays have
come about not by the investigating
committee, but by the White House it-
self. It has been nothing more than an
attempt to wear it out, to use it up, to
exhaust the people, to exhaust the
money, to hope it would go away, and
the length and time set for the inves-
tigation would lapse.

Just a few weeks ago, we received
key documents from Mark Gearan. We
received new documents from Harold
Ickes, the White House Deputy Chief of
Staff. And even just this week, still
documents are coming in from White
House lawyers. If the legal staff and
the White House do not know where
their notes and papers are, maybe that
explains some of the confusion we see
coming out of the White House. What
do they know if they do not know
where their notes and papers are?

Last December, on the Senate floor,
we voted for a resolution to subpoena
William Kennedy’s notes from a No-
vember 5, 1993, meeting concerning
Whitewater. The full Senate voted a
subpoena. And last Friday, Bruce
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Lindsey admitted that he, too, had
notes from this meeting. Last Friday.
That is 2 years and 3 or 4 months. He
brought those notes forward for one
reason, which is that he believes this
investigation is going to go on and he
has a fear of obstructing justice. Can
you imagine someone of that rank at
the White House telling the committee
that he did not take notes and then
find them after the deadline has ex-
pired? We are asked to believe that.
Furthermore, the accidental discovery
of documents always seems to occur on
Friday afternoon after the news dead-
line. This is when Bruce Lindsey
turned over his documents. This is
when the First Lady’s billing records
were released. I do not think a commit-
tee of the U.S. Senate should be treat-
ed with the disrespect the White House
has shown this committee.

The cost of the investigation is not
small, but I have asked, ‘‘Can we put a
price on the integrity of the White
House?’’ Mr. President, it is worth dis-
cussing how we arrived at this point? It
is worth reviewing how Whitewater be-
came a congressional issue, because it
tells us something about the failure of
the savings and loan industry and also
tells us a lot about the ethics of Bill
and Hillary Clinton?

In February 1989, Madison Guaranty
Savings Loan failed. The failure cost
American taxpayers an estimated $60
million at that time. I see figures
today that it is over $70 million. But,
whatever, it was a lot of taxpayer dol-
lars. In fact, the entire savings and
loan crisis cost the American tax-
payers $150 billion—an unbelievably
staggering amount of money. The
Banking Committee has every right—
and, in fact, a duty—to review the
cause of the crisis. Is there any ques-
tion that the American people, who are
paying this bill—they are paying the
$60 or $70 million Madison lost, and
they and their children and grand-
children are going to pay the $150 bil-
lion, and they have a right to know
where the money went and how it hap-
pened.

While Madison was a small institu-
tion, its failure was one of the worst in
the Nation. When it failed, the cost to
the taxpayers was 50 percent of the as-
sets of the institution—50 percent.

In Arkansas, 80 percent of the State-
chartered S&L’s failed while Bill Clin-
ton was Governor. Jim McDougal took
over Madison from 1982 to 1986. In 4
short years, the assets grew from $6
million to $123 million. Now, if we will
back up and look at what assets mean,
that means he borrowed $117 million
more in a period of 4 years. He bor-
rowed $117 million that wound up being
guaranteed by the taxpayers of this
country. In 4 years, he borrowed $117
million that the taxpayers of this
country wound up paying off for him.
Part of that money, a good bit of it,
went to Whitewater Development.

He increased his loans to insiders.
That is what Bill and Hillary certainly
would have been, since they were his

partners in a real estate deal. He in-
creased his loans to insiders. When he
took it, the insider loans were $500,000.
Four years later, he had increased his
loans to insiders, which were Bill and
Hillary Clinton, the President and
First Lady, to $17 million. Whitewater
was one of the ventures that caused
Madison to fail.

Furthermore, the claims that the
Clintons lost money is false. They
never had any of their money at risk.
You cannot lose money you did not
have. It was a sweetheart deal for the
new Governor, tracking and congruent
with the commodity trade in which
Hillary Clinton earned $100,000. Do you
know how she earned $100,000 in the
most speculative business in the world?
She read the Wall Street Journal. After
she earned $100,000, without expla-
nation, in this brilliant, brilliant trade,
worked by a commodity broker named
Red Bone who was investigated for ev-
erything, she quit. No more commodity
trades. If she possessed the skill to
turn $1,000 into $100,000 in that length
of time by being First Lady, she is
wasting the most valuable and poten-
tial money-making asset this Nation
has ever known.

The Pillsbury report that has been
referred to many times by Senators in
the minority showed that the tax-
payers of this country lost far more
money on Whitewater than the Clin-
tons. To me, that alone is a scandal.

Furthermore, there are reports in to-
day’s Washington Post that Mrs. Clin-
ton herself was much more involved in
Whitewater than we believed, that she
was fully aware that the McDougals
had put more money into the deal than
the Clintons did. Again, we have two
Yale-educated attorneys that today
tell us they were oblivious to the whole
affair, that they did not understand it.
It is almost beyond the concept of most
of us on the committee to see two of
the ‘‘smartest lawyers’’—said her press
people or somebody; we were clearly
often told Mrs. Clinton was one of the
100 smartest lawyers in the Nation, and
he certainly was at Oxford—could not
buy 300 acres of cheap Arkansas land
without a national scandal. The two
smartest lawyers in the country could
not buy 300 acres of cheap Arkansas
land without creating a national scan-
dal.

Why? Because it was not a clean
legal deal. That is why you could not
buy it without a scandal. Madison
Guaranty was a high-flier savings and
loan. It has been called the personal
piggy bank for the political elite in Ar-
kansas. I called it a calabash or a pot
of money that the politicians were dip-
ping in and taking out. I do not often
agree with the editorial pages of the
New York Times, but they have called
the Whitewater hearings a stew of eva-
sion and memory lapses. They do not
often get it correct, but they did that
time.

Mr. President, the central issue in
Whitewater has been whether Madison
received favorable treatment from Ar-

kansas savings and loan regulators be-
cause of Jim McDougal’s close ties to
President Clinton. Essentially, the
question is this: Did the losses to the
taxpayers increase because Jim
McDougal pressed his case with State
regulators, which President Clinton,
then Governor Clinton, Bill Clinton,
had appointed?

The notes from Gearan’s meeting,
from the meeting he was in, suggested
the White House wanted to send some-
body down to Little Rock to get the
story straight with Beverly Bassett
Schaffer, the State savings and loan
regulator. Get the story straight. The
folks we were talking about, if we send
them—and I do not remember the ini-
tials—but if we send CP, HL, and CB, it
will come out. We cannot send them.
Maybe we could get somebody from
New York to go. They probably would
not be recognized very quickly in Lit-
tle Rock. Maybe we can get somebody
from here or there to go. If we send our
people, they will be recognized; it will
get out.

Well, if it were an honest, clean trip,
what was there to get out? Why not go
down and talk to Ms. Schaffer and say,
‘‘Here is what we are here for. Tell us
the truth.’’ That was not the purpose of
the trip. The purpose of the trip was to
get the story to match.

Had the American public been given
the real picture in the wake of the sav-
ings and loan crisis, I think they would
have reacted very differently to the in-
side quid pro quo way of doing business
in Arkansas and Little Rock, particu-
larly since the American taxpayers
paid for the lax regulations. We will be
paying for this into the whole next cen-
tury.

Mr. President, Whitewater extends
even farther than Madison Guaranty.
It involves a small business investment
corporation called Capital Manage-
ment Services. This company was run
by a man named David Hale. It, too,
served as a personal bank for the po-
litically connected in Arkansas. Its
purpose was to make loans to the dis-
advantaged, but that turned out to be
the rule-making politicians of Little
Rock. Regrettably, the American tax-
payers paid over $3 million for the fail-
ure of Capital Management.

Mr. President, it is a fact that Cap-
ital Management made a $300,000 loan
to Whitewater. Now, inside the beltway
of Washington and in the vernacular of
the Congress, $300,000 would not even
be a blip on the screen. To the average
American, $300,000 is an enormous
amount of money.

Now, Capital Management made a
$300,000 loan to Whitewater. That is far
more than anybody had put into it in
real money. We have strong evidence
that President Clinton asked this loan
be made. I think time will tell that
David Hale is telling the truth when he
says that Bill Clinton pressured him to
make this loan to help benefit
Whitewater. If it is not true that Bill
Clinton pressured David Hale to make
this loan, then we need to—and I hope
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the Democrats would be pushing to ex-
tend these hearings so we can bring
David Hale to the hearings and let him
clear Bill Clinton’s name.

If it is true, if it is true that the
President, now President Clinton, pres-
sured him, then that needs to be
brought to the light and let the public
see it.

Here again, the American taxpayers
have paid to subsidize President and
Mrs. Clinton’s failed real estate ven-
ture in Arkansas. Again, our
Whitewater hearings have uncovered
that the White House was aware of the
Hale investigation from the very begin-
ning. They had testimony from a ca-
reer SBA official that the SBA briefed
Mike McLarty in May 1993, about the
SBA investigation of David Hale. They
briefed McLarty about the SBA inves-
tigation of David Hale, the man who
said he was pressured by then-Governor
and now President Bill Clinton to
make the loan.

That is essentially what these hear-
ings are about, the loss of taxpayer
money in Madison, Whitewater, and
Capital Management. We have never
had Mr. Hale as a witness. We need him
as a witness and we need to wait until
the legal proceedings going on in Little
Rock are over and bring him as a wit-
ness.

Mr. President, on another issue,
Vince Foster’s death and the handling
of his papers on the eve of his death
has raised the most questions with the
committee. We know for a fact that the
First Lady spoke with her assistant,
Maggie Williams, before Maggie Wil-
liams went to the White House and
Vince Foster’s office. In fact, she spoke
to her in almost record time that you
could drive from Maggie Williams’
house to get in Vince Foster’s office.
And we know by the telephone records
when she left her home and we know by
the Secret Service records when the
alarm went off in Vince Foster’s office
and she went in. And she did it in al-
most record time.

We asked her before the committee,
why did she go to the White House?
And the explanation was a somewhat
vague, that she was out riding and had
to be somewhere. Well, she was some-
where, in Vince Foster’s office.

We know that they spoke later in the
evening, immediately upon Maggie
Williams’ return from the White House.
We know that she called, Mrs. Clinton
called her. She went to the White
House. We know she went to the White
House, she went to Vince Foster’s of-
fice, she went directly back home, and
she called the First Lady. That we
know.

Then, in the morning, 1 a.m., Maggie
Williams was talking to Susan
Thomases. We have the sworn testi-
mony of uniformed Secret Service Offi-
cer Henry O’Neill, who saw Maggie Wil-
liams remove documents from Vince
Foster’s office on the night of his
death. All of this is undisputed fact.

Within the last few weeks we have
gathered more information that I

think gives credence to the notion that
files were indeed removed on the night
of Mr. Foster’s death. First, two files
relating to the Madison Guaranty were
sent back to the Rose Law Firm by
David Kendall. They had to have come
out of Vince Foster’s office. Yet these
files were never part of the box that
Maggie Williams said she took from
Foster’s office 2 days after his death.
These documents were reviewed and
cataloged by Bob Barnett, the Clin-
ton’s other attorney. The two Madison
files never appeared there.

Mr. President, what we have seen is
massive inconsistency and confusion.
It has gone on and on and on. The
truth, as I use a poor simile, is that
getting information out of the White
House was akin to eating ice cream
with a knitting needle. And that is
about what it has been, a little bit here
and a little bit there. But never enough
to satisfy.

This is the way it has gone on since
the beginning of the hearings and unbe-
lievable stories we have been asked to
believe. We can go back to the Maggie
Williams/Susan Thomases flurry of
telephone calls, and also to Mrs. Clin-
ton’s explanation of them.

Maggie Williams: I do not know why
I went to the White House. I could not
possibly have taken anything out. Yet
she met a uniformed 18-year veteran of
the Secret Service in a 5-foot hall, and
neither of them are small people. He
had no reason to tell it wrong. She im-
mediately calls Mrs. Clinton from her
home phone when she gets back to her
house, and she went directly back to
her house. There were many calls to
Susan Thomases and Mrs. Clinton over
a very short period of time. And the ex-
planation we have for these calls is this
one: They were commiserating with
each other. They were making sure ev-
erybody was all right. They were
checking to see if the bereaved were
comfortable.

Mrs. Clinton herself said that these
calls were commiserating and there
was a lot of sobbing going on on those
calls that night.

I find that extremely difficult to be-
lieve, and if I am wrong I would be de-
lighted to be corrected by the facts.
But we find no calls from Mrs. Clinton
to Mrs. Foster or the children. The
telephone records have not indicated
those calls existed, and so far they
have not been brought forward. I be-
lieve the documents that Maggie Wil-
liams delivered that night are the now-
famous missing billing records. I fully
believe that Maggie Williams had them
in her arms that night. Certainly ev-
erybody agrees that Vince Foster’s
handwriting was all over these billing
records—in the original writing, not
copies. The records were copies but his
handwriting was the original. It was all
over them.

Many have said, Well, what is it in
the billing records that is significant?

There are two very important
significances. One of them is that they
were subpoenaed by a Senate inves-

tigating committee, they were subpoe-
naed by an independent counsel, and
whoever knew where they were should
have brought them forward regardless
of what they said. They were subpoe-
naed papers.

But the significance—another signifi-
cance is the work on the Castle Grande
project is important. That was the one
project that RTC said: There may be
legal liability for the Rose Law Firm.
Is it any wonder that they stayed hid-
den until after the statute of limita-
tion had expired?

The First Lady had over 14 calls with
Seth Ward, according to her billing
records. Seth Ward was the Castle
Grande man. This was a known sham
deal identified by the RTC as a sham
deal. Is it reasonable to think that one
of the 100 smartest lawyers in the
country could have had 14 telephone
calls with a client doing a sham deal
and not suspect it or known it was
wrong? I think she knew well what she
was doing. She had to know. That is
why the documents did not turn up.

Castle Grande cost the American tax-
payers $4 million. The RTC tried to col-
lect some of the money. But Mrs. Clin-
ton had disguised work on this issue.
No wonder they were so concerned
about the statute of limitations expir-
ing in 1994 but extended until the end
of 1995. This is what sparked the meet-
ing that we saw in 1994.

Mr. President, in conclusion, we still
have key witnesses to call, witnesses
that know where the bodies are buried,
witnesses that will talk and can talk,
but they are tied up in a trial in Little
Rock now. We need to get them here.
Jim McDougal, Susan McDougal, and
David Hale. Can you imagine if we held
Iran-Contra hearings without Ollie
North or John Poindexter or Bud
McFarland? What would the hearings
show? Can you imagine if the Repub-
licans wanted to end these hearings
and had wanted to end them? The
media would have crucified us. It would
not have happened.

To conclude, here are some of the
questions that need answers. These we
need answered before we conclude the
hearings.

Who placed Mrs. Clinton’s subpoe-
naed records in the White House book
room? Nobody has given me any argu-
ment that the White House book room
and Mrs. Clinton’s private adjoining of-
fice are the two most secure rooms in
the world. If they are not, they should
be, because that is where the President
spends his private time.

Were those records in Vince Foster’s
office the night he died? If so, who re-
moved them? And where were they
stored for 2 years?

Clearly, the records did not walk out
of Vince Foster’s office. They were
walked out, and whoever walked them
out knows where they carried them
and where they were hidden for 2 years.

Did White House officials lie to in-
vestigators about what went on in the
hours and days after Vince Foster’s
death? Did the White House response
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team obstruct justice by attempting to
control the scope of the investigation?
Did the White House Whitewater re-
sponse team obstruct justice by at-
tempting to tamper with a witness?
Did then-Governor Clinton pressure a
local judge to make an illegal loan to
his business partner? These we can an-
swer if we get the people here.

Why did the Clinton business partner
pay most of the Clintons’ share of
Whitewater Development Corps. bills?
What motivated his generosity? Was
the administration involved in any ac-
tion which prevented, impeded, or ob-
structed the administration of justice?
If so, who directed it, who carried it
out, and what was done? Why cannot
the American people get the answers to
these questions?

If there is nothing to hide, which has
been contended by the Democratic side
and the White House, why not bring
forth the facts, bring forth the docu-
ments and stop letting them out little
by little by little? Nothing would clear
the name of the Clintons quicker than
to bring forth all of the facts, bring the
people in from Little Rock, and con-
clude the hearings.

Would we be literally facing a fili-
buster if there were nothing to hide? If
there is not, let us end the filibuster,
and let us get on with the investiga-
tion.

Mr. President, I think it is time that
we get on with the investigation. I
agree with the Democrats: We need to
bring it to a conclusion, but we need to
complete our work before we bring it
to conclusion.

Mr. President, I see my colleague and
friend from California is on the floor.
So at this time I will yield the floor.

Mrs. BOXER addressed the Chair.
The PRESIDING OFFICER. The Sen-

ator from California.
Mrs. BOXER. I thank my friend for

yielding the floor at this time.
Mr. President, what I would like to

do in the beginning of my remarks is to
correct the record on a couple of mat-
ters that the Senator from North Caro-
lina raised. First of all, the statute of
limitations on the Castle Grande trans-
actions had not expired when the Rose
Law Firm billing records were found in
the White House in early January 1996.
In fact, by a agreement between the
RTC and the Rose Law Firm, the stat-
ute of limitations had been extended
until March 1, 1996.

So, Mr. President, we could have a
disagreement on whether we ought to
continue these hearings, but let us not
get on the floor of the Senate and say
things that are not true. It is simply
wrong to suggest that the documents
were discovered because the statute of
limitations had expired when, in fact,
the statute of limitations had not ex-
pired.

Second, Mr. President, I think it is
very important when colleagues stand
up and make comments that there be a
basis for those comments.

I am happy to yield to my friend for
a question.

Mr. FAIRCLOTH. I am very much
aware, and we all are, that the statute
of limitations was not applicable to the
First Lady’s business. But as a member
of a Rose Law Firm, as the attorney in-
volved, and as a billing attorney in-
volved in this—and she was the billing
attorney on Castle Grande—she would
certainly have a responsibility, maybe
not a personal financial responsibility,
but she very much would be involved in
the proceedings.

Mrs. BOXER. If I might reclaim my
time, I think my friend is not con-
tradicting what I said. I will repeat
what I said.

The statute of limitations had been
extended until March 1, 1996, and it is
wrong to suggest that the documents
were discovered because the statute of
limitations had expired. That is the
only point I am making to my friend. I
think it is important we not stand up
here and say the statute had expired.

I am going to have to take back my
time and tell my friend he is going to
have to seek time on his own only be-
cause of a pressing appointment in my
office. I need to make this statement
and finish it, if I might.

I am glad to yield to my friend, but
I hope he would have a question.

Mr. FAIRCLOTH. My question is in
answer to the statement. Mrs. Clin-
ton’s attorney, Mr. Kendall, said it was
a legal question whether it involved
the Rose Law Firm or Mrs. Clinton per-
sonally. I yield the floor.

Mrs. BOXER. I would just restate
that whether it did or did not is not my
point. My point is a statement was
made here that the statute had ex-
pired, and the implication is that, if
there was something wrong in the bill-
ing records, the First Lady and the
Rose Law Firm would be off the hook.
The statute did not expire. In fact, we
know the billing records were turned
over, and actually underscored what
the First Lady had said, that the time
she put into that is minimum.

That is the first point I want to cor-
rect, Mr. President.

Second, I want to quote from the
Madison Guaranty Savings and Loan
and Whitewater Development Co. sup-
plemental report written by Pillsbury,
Madison & Sutro. And we know part of
that firm is Jay Stephens, who has
strong ties to the Republican Party.
This is what they found. I am going to
state this and quote directly from the
report.

There is no basis to assert that the Clin-
tons knew anything of substance about the
McDougals’ advances to Whitewater, the
source of funds used to make those advances,
or the source of the funds used to make pay-
ments on the bank debt.

That is on page 77.
On page 78, quoting from an inves-

tigative report that cost about $3 mil-
lion—excuse me, I stand corrected, $4
million—page 78:

There is no basis to charge the Clintons
with any kind of primary liability for fraud
or intentional misconduct. The investigation
has revealed no evidence to support any such

claim, nor would the records support any
claim of secondary derivative liability for
the possible misdeeds of others.

Page 78. ‘‘It is recommended’’—and
this is very important, I say to my col-
leagues—‘‘it is recommended that no
further resources be expended on the
Whitewater part of the investigation.’’

Now, this is an objective report, paid
for by the taxpayers, done by the firm
of Pillsbury, Madison & Sutro, a great
law firm, including Jay Stephens,
known for his ties to Republicans, and
what do they say?

It is recommended that no further re-
sources be expended on the Whitewater part
of the investigation into Madison Guaranty.

So what are we doing in the Senate?
Ignoring this, ignoring this and moving
on with an investigation of a Senate
select committee. I think we ought to
start listening to people who are objec-
tive on this, who have no political ax
to grind. As a matter of fact, people
thought in the beginning, when Pills-
bury, Madison & Sutro got that: My
God, this is going to be political.

Well, it turned out that the Clintons
have been cleared.

Now, I know that annoys a lot of my
Republican friends, and I feel sorry for
them, that this is the biggest thing in
their lives, some of them. But I have to
tell you there are other things in the
lives of the American people that have
to be addressed by this Senate. And I
have to tell you, these attacks on the
First Lady of the United States, these
personal attacks, these personal at-
tacks on the President of the United
States border, in my opinion, on being
unpatriotic. It is my personal opinion.
But that is up to each individual Sen-
ator. And clearly it is up to the people
of the country to decide.

I have to say, listening to these at-
tacks, when my colleague says he be-
lieves David Hale, well, that is his
right. This is a man who has already
pleaded guilty to two felonies, as I un-
derstand it. And not only that, but we
have word that the State is prosecut-
ing him as well. And this is the individ-
ual that is quoted in this Chamber to
prove that our First Lady and our
President are not good human beings.
Well, again, it is every Senator’s right
to call it the way he sees it, but I think
the American people see right through
this. And who are they going to be-
lieve? A man who has already stated
that he committed two felonies or
Pillsbury, Madison & Sutro, which says
in their report: Let us spend no more
time on this investigation. The Clin-
tons are not guilty of anything.

Now, I supported every single vote
here to move this investigation for-
ward. I voted to set up the special com-
mittee. I voted to extend the special
committee. I had nothing but support
for those two resolutions. We reached
across party lines. We worked together.
We shaped resolutions that were not
political. But I say it is time to step
back and wind this thing down.

I have to tell you, the offer that we
Democrats have made is extremely



CONGRESSIONAL RECORD — SENATES 1566 March 6, 1996
generous in terms of the time and the
allocation of funds we have rec-
ommended. Let me prove that point.
We have already heard from 121 wit-
nesses, some of them two and three
times, mind you. They are brought
back. They have to pay for attorneys.
Some of them do not have means to do
it. Some of them will be paying that off
for decades, if ever. But we have done
it.

We have met for 230 hours of hear-
ings. I want you to keep that number
in mind—230 hours of actual hearings.
Now, the Democratic leader and rank-
ing member, Senator SARBANES, and all
of us are saying, let us have an addi-
tional 5 weeks of hearings, almost
$200,000 more, recommending also that
there be 4 weeks allocated in addition
to write a report, and our Republican
colleagues say it is not enough. It is
not enough.

Why? Why? This is their latest rea-
son. Because they cannot get up here
and say we want to keep investigating,
keep the story alive because it hurts
the First Lady and it hurts the Presi-
dent. You cannot say that. But this is
what they say. In the court, there is a
hearing. There is a trial in court, and
we need to call those people. We need
to wait.

Let me quote from a letter signed by
our ranking member, Senator SAR-
BANES, and our chairman, Al D’AMATO,
that was written in October 1995. This
is signed by both.

The special committee does not intend to
seek the testimony of any defendant in the
pending action brought by your office.

This is to Ken Starr.
Nor will it extend to expand upon the

grants of immunity provided to persons by
your office. Indeed, Senate Resolution 120 ex-
pressly provides the special committee may
not immunize a witness if the independent
counsel informs the committee in writing
that immunizing that witness would inter-
fere with the independent counsel’s ability
to prosecute.

So, in writing, our chairman said he
had no intention of calling any wit-
nesses. Now, the big reason we have to
wait is we have to call the same people
who are going before this jury.

Now, let me say something. And this
was brought out by our ranking mem-
ber, Senator SARBANES, but it bears re-
peating. I wish to say to my Repub-
lican friends, this is America. We do
not have trials in secret in this coun-
try. Every one of these people involved
in the trial, all the people who Senator
FAIRCLOTH says he wants to hear from,
they are going to be in that courtroom
and we are going to hear from them.
But, no, that is not enough. We want to
play prosecutor. You know, this is not
‘‘L.A. Law.’’ This is the Senate of the
United States of America. We are legis-
lators, not prosecutors. That is why we
have the independent counsel.

And by the way, does the independ-
ent counsel have any limits to his in-
vestigation? The answer is no. He has,
as I understand it, 100 FBI agents on
this matter and 30 lawyers; unlimited

sums of money. But we are going to
play prosecutor. Maybe some of them
are jealous; they want to be prosecu-
tors. Well, they ought to do that and
not be Senators. That is fair. But do
not turn this Senate into a group of
prosecutors because that is not our
role. That is why we have the inde-
pendent counsel. Take the politics out
of this thing. So we have had 230 hours
of hearings, and now we are offering
another 5 weeks.

Now, let me say this to anyone who
is listening. I sat down with my pen
and figured out how many hours of
hearings we could have under the
Democratic proposal. Let us say we
worked 8 hours a day, taking an hour
for lunch like most Americans, 8 hours
a day, and held those hearings 5 days a
week. Most Americans work 5 days a
week. I think it is a sound idea myself.
We could hear from so many witnesses.
We could hear from 100 witnesses,
maybe more.

As I figure it, we would have 175
hours of additional hearings. They
have only had 230. They could have an-
other 175 hours. What happens if we de-
cide to work 10 hours a day? Just work
a little harder, take an hour for lunch,
a 10-hour day. We could have another
250 hours of hearings under the Demo-
cratic proposal.

We have only had 230. So we could
just do as much as we have done, plus.
If my Republican friends are so anxious
to work on this, let us get to work. Let
us go. Let us get your witnesses, let us
line them up, an hour at a time. Let us
do our work.

But, no, as the ranking member has
pointed out, there are some weeks they
have one witness. They harangue them
for 9 hours—and I mean harangue—to
no avail, by the way. So if we are real-
ly serious, the Democratic alternative
has offered them more hours than they
have already spent. So let us stop say-
ing that we want to close it down. By
the way, some Members on my side do
want to close it down. They do not
want any more hours. I happen to be-
lieve let us close it down in an orderly
fashion. So I am supporting this addi-
tional 5 weeks, with 4 weeks to write a
report.

I just cannot understand why my Re-
publican friends do not want to take
this, if they are serious about saying
they want to get their work done. They
want to hear from these witnesses in
the jury trial. We can listen in, just as
all Americans can, and read all the re-
ports about the trial and get the infor-
mation we need. If we feel we need to
take more action legislatively because
we found out new information, we can
do that.

By the way, I also point out we do
have a Senate Banking Committee that
can meet any day of the week. Why do
we need to hire all these special law-
yers they bring in? They go on tele-
vision every night and report, move
their careers up the line. At what cost?
At what cost? We have very good peo-
ple on staff. We can do some of this in
the Senate Banking Committee.

So we are legislators, not prosecu-
tors. The Democratic alternative gives
you more hours than you have already
expended on this matter. The only rea-
sonable conclusion I think the Amer-
ican people can draw is that that is not
their interest. Their interest is in drag-
ging this out until election day—until
election day.

I have to tell you something. It is not
working for them. From a political
standpoint, if I were being political, I
would just let them go right ahead, be-
cause the American people are dis-
gusted. They are watching this, and
they are saying, ‘‘This is incredible.
These people are meeting back here in
Washington, and what are they doing?
Nothing to make our lives better, noth-
ing to make our lives better. As a mat-
ter of fact, spending $600,000’’—which is
the proposal of the Republicans—
‘‘which could be better spent either on
deficit reduction or restoring some of
the cuts to education they so happily
made here.’’

Teachers are being laid off all over
who teach reading to children, because
of the actions of this Senate. They
could not find the money for education.
But boy, oh, boy, they find it pretty
easy for this.

I have a Superfund site in San
Bernardino, CA, where a poison plume
is moving down into the water supply.
That cannot be cleaned up because the
Republicans, who control this body and
the other body, do not even have the
budget passed. I am on the Budget
Committee. We are supposed to be
working on the next budget. They do
not even have the current budget
passed.

But, oh, no, we have to talk about
Whitewater. We need $600,000, not to re-
store some of these cuts, not to reduce
the deficit, not to clean up Superfund
sites, not to raise the minimum wage.
You do not even need money to do
that; you just need time on the floor to
vote on it. It is at a 40-year low. People
try to live on it. They cannot take
time for that.

I mean, it is just amazing to me. So
politically, as far as I am concerned,
when people look at this Congress,
they are saying, ‘‘We didn’t expect this
kind of change. We didn’t expect a
whole breakdown in the budget proc-
ess. They can’t even get their act to-
gether to pass the debt.’’ Hurting our
ratings because we cannot even do our
job. But they have a lot of time for
Whitewater.

So maybe I should not be here com-
plaining about it. Maybe, politically
speaking, it will help, help change who
is in control around here. But be that
as it may, I have to say what I think.
What I think is that this offer from the
Democrats to extend these hearings for
5 weeks, another 4 weeks to write a re-
port, if we got our act together and
worked 8, 10 hours a day, we could just
have well over 100 witnesses and wrap
this up and get on to the work and
keep this out of the political arena.

People want job training, education.
They want pension protection. They
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want health insurance that is portable.
We have a great bipartisan bill. Why is
that not up here? The Kassebaum-Ken-
nedy bill will protect our people from
getting their insurance canceled be-
cause of a preexisting condition. It
would allow them to take that health
insurance with them.

I ask you, what is more important
for our people, standing up and berat-
ing the President and the First Lady
on something that happened years and
years ago, where the special counsel
has all the resources he needs to bring
justice, or doing the work of the U.S.
Senate? I am absolutely amazed that,
after all the bipartisanship we have
had on that committee over so many
years, our ranking member and our
chairman cannot agree when we have
offered hours and hours of hearings to
them.

It is extraordinary to me. I think
this issue of the trial is a false issue.
Again, this is not going to be a secret
trial. So, Mr. President, I am clearly
distraught that this is the priority of
the U.S. Senate.

Mr. President, I ask unanimous con-
sent that I may speak for 3 minutes on
a different subject. Then I will yield
the floor.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Is there
objection? Hearing none, so ordered.

Mrs. BOXER. Thank you so much,
Mr. President.
f

VIOLENCE BY TERRORISTS IN
ISRAEL

Mrs. BOXER. Mr. President, I rise to
discuss the recent violence in Israel
and to express my profound hope that
these cowardly terrorist attacks will
not destroy the peace process that so
many have worked so hard to cul-
tivate.

In the past week, the extremist, ter-
rorist organization Hamas has spon-
sored four deadly bombings, killing
more than 60 people and wounding
more than 200 innocent, innocent peo-
ple. These vile and disgusting acts
clearly targeted at innocent civilians
on public buses and on busy streets
must be condemned.

It is hard to imagine the kind of de-
ranged mind that could contemplate
such appallingly evil deeds. As the
President said very eloquently yester-
day, he cannot even imagine an adult
who could teach a child to hate so
much.

The most recent attack, which oc-
curred this past Sunday, killed 14 Is-
raelis, including 3 children dressed in
their costume for the Purim festivals.

Purim is among the most joyous
holidays for the Jewish people. It com-
memorates how the children of Israel
overcame a genocidal plot thousands of
years ago. Purim reminds us that in
the end, good triumphs over evil and
reminds us that the Jewish people have
an indomitable spirit of survival. The
Persians could not destroy the Jewish
people thousands of years ago. The
Nazis failed 50 years ago. And Hamas
will fail, too.

The United States of America stands
shoulder to shoulder with Israel during
this crisis. Their battle against these
evildoers will be the battle of all civ-
ilized people everywhere.

An all-out war on terrorism must and
should be waged. But the Hamas ter-
rorists want one thing more than any-
thing else, Mr. President—to scuttle
the peace process. We must not allow
them to win. We must defeat the ter-
rorists and ensure a lasting peace.

PLO President Yasser Arafat can and
must do much more. His recent state-
ments condemning these attacks un-
conditionally have been good, but his
actions must now follow his words.
Only he has the power, the position,
and the influence to gain control over
Hamas.

My heart goes out to the victims of
this violence and to all the good people
of the Middle East who pray and work
for peace.

I thank you very much, Mr. Presi-
dent, and I yield the floor. I suggest
the absence of a quorum.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The
clerk will call the roll.

The assistant legislative clerk pro-
ceeded to call the roll.

Mr. HATCH. Mr. President, I ask
unanimous consent that the order for
the quorum call be rescinded.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Without
objection, it is so ordered.
f

WHITEWATER DEVELOPMENT
CORP. AND RELATED MATTERS—
MOTION TO PROCEED
The Senate continued with the con-

sideration of the motion.
Mr. HATCH. Mr. President, I have

heard just about all the whining about
Whitewater that I can stand. To be
honest with you, if this was a Repub-
lican President, what has already been
uncovered would be front-page head-
lines all over the country everyday.

The fact is, it is a mess, and it does
not take any brains for people to real-
ize that if you set a short time limit,
people are literally not going to com-
ply with that time limit.

We have had more than ample proof
that that has been the case here—more
than ample proof. The fact of the mat-
ter is, we have had documents drib-
bling in at the last minute 21⁄2 years
since there has been a subpoena for
them. There is no excuse for it. To hear
our friends on the other side on this
issue, it is outrageous what they are
saying, and to act like this is not the
Senate’s business is also outrageous.
There may not be anything more im-
portant for the Senate to do than to do
its job in this area.

Now, I have to say, I hope personally
that the President and the First Lady
do not have any difficulties in the end,
but there are a lot of unanswered ques-
tions. There are a lot of things that
any logically minded person or fair-
minded person would have to conclude
create some difficulties for anybody,
let alone the President and the First
Lady.

It is one thing to stand up and defend
your party and your party’s Presi-
dent—I have done it myself, and I do
not have any problem with that at all;
in fact, I commend my friends on the
other side for doing it—but it is an-
other thing to act like this is not im-
portant business or that we should not
be doing this; that there are other
things more important. Of course,
there are other things that are also im-
portant, but not more important, and
we should be doing all of them. And I
agree with some of the criticism that
has been given with regard to some of
the things that need to be done.

We have done a lot, but a lot has
been vetoed. There is a lot tied up in
conferences today. There is a lot that
is not being done because of party war-
fare here. I have never seen more fili-
busters used in my whole 20 years in
the Senate than I have seen in the last
couple of years. Almost everything,
even inconsequential bills. Why? Be-
cause they want to stop any momen-
tum of the Contract With America.
That is legitimate. I am not going to
cry about that, but I do not believe you
use filibusters on just about every-
thing. To me that is wrong.

So I rise today to express my support
for the extension of the Special Com-
mittee on Whitewater and Related
Matters. As chairman of the Judiciary
Committee, I see it as my duty to de-
fend the separation of powers and the
constitutional prerogatives of the exec-
utive branch. These are important
things, and I have to say, in some
ways, I resent some of the comments
that indicate these are not important
things. I guess they are not important
because it is a Democratic President
who is being investigated at this time.
Boy, they were sure important when
Republican Presidents were in office.
You could not stop anything from
going on, and you had both Houses of
Congress controlled by Democrats in
most of those cases.

We are talking about the separation
of powers and the constitutional pre-
rogatives of the executive branch.
After giving this issue careful thought,
however, I have decided that the spe-
cial committee’s investigation into
Whitewater must continue. This issue
transcends the claims of partisanship
and goes to the very constitutional au-
thority of Congress to investigate
wrongdoing at the highest levels of
Government.

Congress has the constitutional obli-
gation to see that public officials have
not misused their office, and we have a
duty to bring these matters to the pub-
lic eye so that the American people can
be confident that their Government is
operated in a fair, just, and honest
way.

We must provide the special commit-
tee with more time in order to dem-
onstrate that delaying tactics of a
White House, whether Democrat or Re-
publican, will not be permitted to frus-
trate a legitimate congressional inves-
tigation.
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